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By connecting the UK and Lloyds
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Strong financial
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continued business
momentum and good
strategic process
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Markets

LBCM provides a wide
range of banking and
financial services through
branches and offices in the
UK, the Crown
Dependencies, the USA
and Germany, supported
by over 1,200 colleagues
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Our Reporting

Our reporting is designed to
facilitate better communication
to a range of stakeholders. Our
Annual Report provides
disclosures relating to our
strategic, financial and

This Annual Report and Accounts
contains forward-looking
statements relating to LBCM's
future financial condition,
performance, results, strategic
initiatives and objectives. For

The 2022 Annual Report and Accounts incorporates the
strategic report and the consolidated financial statements,
both of which have been approved by the Board of Directors.

On behalf of the Board

Carla Antunes da Silva

Chief Executive Officer (CEO)
Lloyds Bank Corporate Markets plc
21 March 2023

our . A& S
Strategy

Page 6

Page 49

Definitions

Lloyds Bank Corporate Markets plc
(the Bank) and its subsidiary
undertakings (together the Group).
References within this document
to LBCM refer to the Group as
defined here.

operational performance and
provides detail on our strategy.
Supplementary information and
disclosures are provided in

the Pillar 3 Report.

further details, please refer to our
forward-looking statements on
page 141

Lloyds Banking Group plc is the
ultimate parent company of LBCM
and is also referred to as LBG in
this document.
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LBCM's unique business model

Our purpose

Strategic Report

Helping Britain Prosper by connecting the UK and Lloyds Banking Group with the world.

Our strategy

Connect the UK and LBG with the world through a first-class banking, financing and risk management proposition,

underpinned by excellent customer service.

Our structure and businesses

Part of LBG, supporting customers in
the UK and internationally with a
range of products

Lioyds Bank

Corporate Banks

Ring-Fenced

LBG Equity
Investments
Ltd

Scottish
Widows
Group Ltd

Markets plc Equity

Insurance Investments

Risk management Commercial lending Retail banking services

foreign exchange, rates, credit,
commodities and liability
management

fixed rate loans, revolving credit facilities,
variable loans and business mortgages

mortgages, current accounts,
personal loans and motor finance
in the Crown Dependencies

Bonds and structured finance Trade and working capital management ESG product solutions

trade services, trade finance, asset
finance, supply chain finance

bonds, structured lending and asset
securitisation

sustainable financing loans,
derivatives, green bonds and
carbon trading

Our hubs Our customers
UK
New York, USA

Frankfurt, Germany

The target market for these products and services in the UK and
internationally is made up of large corporates, financiall
institutions and commercial customers plus retail customers in
the Crown Dependencies

©

Jersey, Guernsey and
Isle of Man

Our competitive advantages

® UK centre of excellence with deep customer insight and part of LBG
Diversified business model, meeting wide range of consumer needs
Financial strength and disciplined risk management
Value driven colleagues with strong purpose and customer excellence

eV

Trust Sustainable People-first

Our values

How we'll work together to
achieve our strategy

A
3¢

Inclusive

What we do

The Bank was established in response to the Our revenues are earned through the provision of debt and risk
Financial Services (Baning Reform) Act 2013 for the Management solutions to commercial customers; and retaiil
purpose of carrying on elements of the commercial and business banking to Crown Dependencies customers.

banking business of LBG along with the banking As part of LBG, LBCM has an aligned purpose and provides a

business of LBG in territories outside the European  pojistic service to Corporate and Institutional customers, as well
Economic Area. LBCM contributes to the financial as communities in the Crown Dependencies.

results of the Commercial Banking Division of LBG.

2 Lloyds Bank Corporate Markets plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022




CM London, trading floor,
Feb 2023
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Chair’s statement

We are
truly
living

our
purpose

Lord Lupton CBE
Chair

Overview

During 2022, the economic backdrop has created both
uncertainty and challenges for our customers and
opportunities for us to support them across our banking
and markets activities. In such times, the value of a strong
and stable partner that shares their long term vision is
even more important to those customers. Against this
backdrop, LBCM has continued to deliver good business
momentum and strong financial performance.

Purpose and Vision

Our purpose is Helping Britain Prosper by connecting the
UK and Lloyds Banking Group with the world. We achieve
this through providing a first-class banking, financing and
risk management proposition, underpinned by excellent
customer service. This positions us well to grow our
business in areas of core strategic focus and to deepen
our relationships across our global customer base. We
remain committed to supporting our customers, we strive
to delight them with our service levels, and | am proud of
the role LBCM plays in Helping Britain Prosper.

Board of Directors

We review the Board’'s composition and diversity regularly
and are committed to ensuring we have the right balance
of skills and experience within the Board. During 2022,
there have been a number of changes to the Board and
further detail can be found in our governance report.

I would like to thank and paly tribute to Eduardo Stock da
Cunha who retired in January 2023 as CEO having led the
business for the last three years.

4 Lloyds Bank Corporate Markets plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022

Strategic Report

His personal commitment and strong vision have driven a
period of success both in supporting our customers and
colleagues through a challenging period; creating our
strategy for future growth; and improving financial returns
culminating in LBCM’s strong 2022 results. Succeeding him
as CEO from February 2023 is Carla Antunes da Silva, who
has served on the LBCM Board for the last five years as a
non-executive director. She brings a wealth of knowledge
and experience including most recently as LBG’s Group
Strategy, Corporate Development and Investor Relations
Director.

The Board has made good progress on diversity at board
level in its broadest sense — gender, race, nationality, and
age. Itis a multinational board (Germon, French,
Portuguese and British), with age diversity from 40 years
upwards and Black, Asian, and Minority Ethnic
representation of 11 per cent. With 55 per cent of the Board
currently comprising women directors, including both the
CEO and Chief Financial Officer (CFO), the Board continues
to exceed the FTSE Women Leaders Review
recommendation of 40 per cent board and leadership
positions held by women and at least one woman
appointed as chair, senior independent director, CEO or
CFO by the end of 2025. The Board also meets the
objective of the Parker review of having at least one Black,
Asian and Minority Ethnic Board member.

Conclusion

Our LBCM business has continued to make strategic
progress in 2022, has returned strong results and our
growth plans put us at the heart of our ambition to Help
Britain Prosper.



CEO’s statement

Strong

Strategic Report

¥

i
[

foundations

on which
to build

Carla Antunes da Silva
Chief Executive Officer

“Oour business has
delivered strong
results for the 2022
financial year”

Having been a non-executive director on the LBCM Board
from 2017 to 2022, | was delighted and honoured to take up
the role of CEO of LBCM in February 2023.1 join the Chair in
paying tribute to my predecessor and thanking him for his
support and guidance in my transition to CEO.

Strong financial performance

Against a challenging economic backdrop and significant
market volatility, our business has delivered a strong set of
financial results. Total income of £967 million is up 51 per
cent on 2021 (the highest since the formation of LBCM) and
profit before tax is £477 million, which is 7 per cent of LBG
(stotutory basis). LBCM benefitted from continued balance
sheet growth during the year with advances to customers
increasing to £19 billion (up 10 per cent on 2021) and
sustainable financing of over £1 billion at year end for the
first time. Customer deposits increased to £29 billion
which is an 8 per cent increase on 2021. You can read
more detail on the results in the Financial Performance
and Business Review sections of this report.

Ambitious growth plans

LBCM has a clear strategy to build on these strong results
and deliver sustainable growth. We will focus on
opportunities that are highly aligned to our purpose of
Helping Britain Prosper and where we have competitive
advantages, investing in core businesses to unlock
profitable growth. We will improve and enhance our
customer onboarding journey with our Markets customers
in the UK and US, and Retail customers in the Crown
Dependencies, scale our debt capital markets franchise,
deepen customer relationships across our business and
develop our sustainability strategy.

To support this growth plan, a capital injection of

£250 million was received from our parent company LBG
in December 2022. You can read more about our strategy
on the following pages.

Values

Our new values, in LBCM and across LBG, guide how we'll
work together to achieve our strategy. They will guide our
behaviour but also the way we make everyday choices to
strategic decisions.

Conclusion

These results are a testament to the hard work of LBCM
colleagues across our different businesses and
geographies and a great platform on which to continue to
grow the business. Although the macroeconomic outlook
remains uncertain, our people, business model and
financial strength ensure that we can continue to support
our customers and Help Britain Prosper.

Lloyds Bank Corporate Markets plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022 5



Strategic Report

LBCM Strategy

To connect the UK and LBG with the
world through a first-class banking,
financing and risk management

H ow proposition, underpinned by

excellent customer service.

®
L B c M I s Grow - drive revenue growth and diversification

Focus - strengthen cost and capital efficiency

®
Change - maximise the potential of people,
e p I n g technology and data
o @ . .
Investing across our Markets and International
rl a I n businesses

« Enhancing our risk management
proposition

I ro s p e r « Scaling our debt capital markets franchise

« Deepening our footprint in UK, North
America and Europe

« Nurturing and growing Crown
Dependencies customer relationships

A clear strategy building on ..that will deliver s inable
strong 2022 performance... income growth andreturns

We focus on opportunities that are
highly alighed to our purpose and
where we have competitive
advantages, investing in core
businesses to unlock profitable
growth

6 Lloyds Bank Corporate Markets plc Annual Report cmd_Acc%



Markets

Enhancing our risk
management
proposition

|

>5% |

Market share of FX s@\/qps
traded with LBG Custorﬁ}ers

Top 5
GBP Interest Rate Swaps -

Scaling our debt
capital markets
franchise

We have a well-established focused debt

franchise, with strong relationships in the FTSE

350 across LBG.

Grow in core markets - UK and

GBP G3

Strategic Report

We have been building a sterling centre of
excellence in G3 rates, G10 FX and Repo,
leveraging our expertise and deep customer
franchise across Corporate and Institutional
Banking.

Progress was demonstrated in winning
our first Debt Management Of o)
duration manager mandate r porting
the UK government.

=

We will continue to scale our platform through
new products and investment in technology,
increasing flow volumes and transforming
how we serve our customers; all while taking a
disciplined approach to capital allocation and
returns.

To meet more of the needs of our
customers we will provide an expanded G3
debt franchise and bolster desks in London
with enhanced capabilities and tools.

We plan to increase client footprint and
expand products with adjacency to our
core franchises to increase our share of
business with new and existing customers.

We are developing our sustainability
offering across financing, green bonds and
liability management, supporting
customers transition to net zero and make
their businesses more sustainable. This is a
key focus of our strategy.

Lloyds Bank Corporate Markets plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022 7



Strategic Report

International

We will deepen relationships and attract new

Dee pen | ng our customers by enhancing propositions where

we have expertise, namely rates and debt

fOOtprint in North capital markets, in addition to building on our

strong foundations in infrastructure, project

America and Europe finance and financial institutions.

LBCM is investing in sustainability product
innovation, in particular sustainable lending,

. . supporting our purpose and our customers.
Our operations in New York and PROTENG S PEER

Frankfurt allow us to provide our

To accelerate growth, we plan to recycle our
Customers GCCG§S to the deepeSt_ balance sheet by using originate-to-distribute
capital markets in the world, and is a  strategies, ensuring capital and RWA efficiency
key area of focus for strategic growth andimproving returns.
given the interconnectivity to our UK
franchise and our expertise in relevant
sectors and products.

There is an opportunity to build more valuable
N U I‘t ure dn d relationships by investing in platforms and products

in our retail, expatriate and mass affluent offerings,

g FOW crown whilst continuing to support our local communities,

build on the sustainability agenda and look after

DependenCies vulnerable customers.
I‘eldtion Sh i pS We are investing to deepen our support for local

businesses with first class banking services, which
remains key to our purpose.

We start from a strong i53§ition asgs -

market leading franchise and a critical

source of liquidity for LBCM. A

8 Lloyds Bank COrp‘arkets plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022




Strategic Report

2022 LBCI
HIBLGERS
Review

Key highlights

«  Won first duration manager role for UK
Government debt

+ Prudent management of capital, liquidity and

funding maintained in challenging markets LBCM record
« Crown Dependencies growth plan launched ° °
income and profits

« Creating workplaces of the future in New York,

Jersey and Isle of Man £967m total income
+  Employee engagement improved versus 2021, as .
measured by the annual colleague survey £477m profit before tax

« New emerging leaders programme launched
« Supported customers through Interbank Offered

Rate (IBOR) cessation £'|bn-|-
« First customer onboarded to new strategic . . .
deposit platform in the Crown Dependencies Sustainable financing

We have improved our customer franchise across all
businesses. Investment in our FX capability has supported 2
growth in our customer wallet share for FX trading. We are Growth in our customer

meeting more of our existing customers needs supportingour ~ Wallet share for FX trqding
objective of growing non-lending income.

Our capital efficiency is improving by the further usage of our
new originate to distribute capability, for which the first
transaction was completed during the year.

Lloyds Bank Corporate Markets plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022 9



Strategic Report

. E—
Financial
performaneés

LBCM has re

strong fina ‘.

performance in 2022! A
F

Profit before tax has increased by ;

65 per cent compared to prior year,

with growth on key custo

balance sheet lines and

regulatory capltaJ p03|t

Statutory profit before tax £m

£477m . -
Profit before taX 207 s— 2ss

2020 = 45
2019

368

Statutory Return on Tangible Equity' %

1. Refer to “Performance measures” page 140 for calculation method

2022 e Stat Utory ROTE

2021

13.4%

2019 7.0

Common equity tier 1 ratio %

14-6% 2022 14.6
CET'I l"atiO 2021 ——— ]3]

. . 2020 I —1 4.. 8
Including £250m capital
injsctionrecelveg Bl e pLo) [ g R )



Financial performance continued

LBCM delivered income

growth in 2022, with total
income up 51 per centon the
previous year -

Net
interest
income

Income statement

Total income was £967 million comprising net interest
income of £275 million, net fee and commission income of
£192 million, net trading income of £495 million and other
operating income of £56 million.

Net interestincome has performed well which is a result of
growth in lending and deposits, increasing interest rates
throughout the year (offset by hedging charges), interest
earned on deposits with central banks improving, and
discipline in the management of margin and returns.

Net fee and commission income has been resilient year on
year, with several one off items accounting for the smaill
overall reduction.

Net trading income has improved compared to 2021 as
support has been provided to customers during periods of
volatility and as business has recovered across both
Capital and in particular Financial Markets.

Strategic Report

Income statement 2022 2021 Mvmt Mvmt
£m £m £m %

Net interest income 275 187 88 47

Fee and commission income 192 221 (29) (13)

Net trading income 495 244 251 103

Other income 5 m) 16

Total income 967 641 326 51

Operating expenses (444) (414)

Impairment (charge)/release (4a6) 62

Profit before tax 477 289 188 65

Tax charge (97) (s1)

Profit after tax 380 238 142 60

Operating expenses in the year were £444 million and predominantly consist of management charges relating to the
intra-group agreement (IGA) and staff costs payable to LBG. Cost management in the year has been diligent and
focused with the year on year increase relating to one off costs, including those relating to the IBOR transition,
investment cost recharges through the IGA and closure of our Singapore branch.

An impairment charge of £46 million has been recognised in the period. This expected credit loss (ECL) cost relates to
stage 1and 2 and is driven by the worsening macro economic conditions. There have been no significant new credit
impaired cases (stage 3 impairment) in the year. Please refer to note 14 for more details. A tax charge of £97 million was
recorded which is up year on year due to the increased profitability in 2022. The other comprehensive income charge
of £461 million mainly relates to the movements on the cash flow hedging reserve. More details are contained in note 27.

Lloyds Bank Corporate Markets plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022 1



Strategic Report

Financial performance continued

Balance sheet assets
2022 2021 Mvmt Mvmt
£m £m £m %

Cash and balances at

|
contral banks 19,382 22140 (2,758) (12) Cash and balances at

central banks

Financial assets at fair B rinancial assets
value through profitorloss 14,780 22409 (7.629) (34) FVTPL
Derivative financial W perivative financial
instruments 24,621 17990 6,631 37 instruments

- - B Financial assets at
Financial assets at amortised cost

i 27,42 2

amortised cost 7,424 25616 1808 7 B Other assets
Other assets 452 544  (92) (17)
Total assets 86,659 88,699 (2,040) (2)

Total assets were £86,659 million at 31 December 2022, a decrease of £2,040 million on the prior year. Cash and
balances at central banks and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss have reduced compared to the prior
year end, while derivative financial instruments and financial assets at amortised cost have increased.

The decrease in cash and balances at central banks is as a result of changes in the liquid asset portfolio mix. The
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss change is driven by a year on year reduction in reverse
repurchase agreements and gilts. Derivative financial assets increased mainly due to fair value movements driven
by interest rate movements in key markets.

Financial assets at amortised cost includes loans and advances to banks of £2,117 million, loans and advance to
customers of £19,127 million and reverse repurchase agreements of £5,606 million. The overall increase noted is driven
by increased lending to customers, particularly financial institutions, and the strengthening of the period end US Dollar
rate against sterling from December 2021 to 2022.

Balance sheet liabilities

2022 2021 Mvmt Mvmt

£m £m £m %
Deposits from banks 2456 3821 (1365) (36)
Deposits from customers 29,162 26,967 2185 8
Due to fellow LBG
undertakings 1481 3442 (961)  (57)
W Total deposits (chks and Customers) Financial liabilities at fair
“ B Financial liabilities FVTPL IVOGSI:G through profit or 12578 16582 (4,004) (24)
B perivative financial instruments e p———
M Debt securities in issue instruments 20,070 15572 4498 29
" B Other liabilities Debt securities in issue 16,131 16,644 (513) (3)
Subordinated liabilities 761 684 77 1l
Other liabilities 635 1498 (863) (58)
Total liabilities 83,264 85210 (1,946) (2)

Total liabilities were £83,264 million at 31 December 2022, compared to £85,210 million at 31 December 2021. Increases in
customers deposits and derivative financial instruments have been offset by a decrease in financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss.

Deposits from customers increased year on year in line with LBCM's strategy to grow deposits in the Crown
Dependencies and development of the short terms interest rates business. Balances due to fellow LBG undertakings
reduced as a result of funding received from our parent company being repaid.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss decreased due to a reduction in repurchase agreements over
the year while derivative financial instruments increased due to movements in the fair value. Debt securities in issue
include commercial paper, certificates of deposit and Euro Medium Term Notes.

12 Lloyds Bank Corporate Markets plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022



Strategic Report

Financial performance continued

Balance sheet equity

Total equity at year end was £3,395 million compared 2022 2021 Mvmt
to £3,489 million at 31 December 2021. During the £m £m £m
period a capital injection of £250 million was Share capital 370 120 250
received from our parent company via the issue of

ordinary shares. This increase in share capital is an Other reserves (525) (64)  (461)

enabler for growth supporting LBCM’s growth plans

. Retained profits 2,768 2,651 n7
over the coming years.
ordinary shareholder equity 2613 2707 (94)
Other reserves includes the cash flow hedging .
reserve and the unrealised marked to market Other equity instruments 782 782 —
movements on the structural hedge. Total equity 3395 3489 (94)

L]
Regulatory capital
The capital position of Lioyds Bank Corporate Markets plc is presented on an unconsolidated basis.
Total capital
2022 2021 Mvmt
£m £m £m
Common equity tier 1 capital 2,948 2423 525 M o
Tier 1 capital 3,705 3180 525 B additional Tier 1
Total capital 4285 3700 576 Tier2
Total risk—weighted assets 20,"95 18,436 1759
CETI% 14.6% 131% 15pp
Total risk-weighted assets (£bn)
2022 B cCredit risk
| Counterparty credit risk
B Market risk
| Operational risk
B other
2021

0 25 5 75 10 125 15 17.5 20

The Bank’'s common equity tier 1 (cem) capital ratio increased to 14.6 per cent (31December 2021:131 per cent) largely
as a result of profits in the year and a £250 million increase in ordinary share capital following a capital injection from
the Bank’s parent company in the fourth quarter, offset in part by the increase in risk-weighted assets (RWAS).

The Bank’s total capital ratio increased to 21.2 per cent (31 December 2021: 20.1 per cent), largely reflecting the increase
in CET1 capital and an increase in tier 2 capital, partially offset by the increase in risk-weighted assets.

RWAs increased by £1759 million, or 9.5 per cent, to £20,195 million at 31 December 2022 (31 December: 2021 £18,436
million), largely reflecting increased lending to customers and the impact of foreign exchange movements, principally
driven by movements in the US Dollar and Euro rates. Also, on 1January 2022 the Bank implemented the remainder of
CRR 2 which included a new standardised approach for measuring counterparty credit risk (SA-CCR). The impact of
which was an increase in RWAs of around £1,800 million.

Lloyds Bank Corporate Markets plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022 13



Strategic Report

Financial performance continued

The Bank's UK leverage ratio increased to 5.4 per cent at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021 3.5 per cent). This
reflected the increase in CETI capital and a reduction in the exposure measure, largely reflecting the impact of
regulatory changes applied under the UK leverage ratio framework on 1 January 2022 which resulted in the exclusion
of central bank claims, net of an increase in the derivatives exposure measure following the implementation of SA-
CCR Further reductions in the exposure measure during the year reflected a decrease in securities financing
transactions and gilts, partially offset by the increase in derivative valuations and lending to customers.

The Bank’s capital position as at 31 December 2022, after applying IRFS9 transitional arrangements, is set out in the
following section.

At 31Dec At 31 Dec
2022 2021
Capital resources of the Bank (audited) £m £m
Common equity tier1
Shareholders’ equity per balance sheet 2,650 2,783
Adjustment to retained earnings for foreseeable dividends - (220)
Cash flow hedging reserve 519 48
Debit valuation adjustment (34) (16)
Other adjustments' 7 -
3,142 2,595
less: deductions from common equity tier 1
Prudent valuation adjustment (162) (163)
Excess of expected losses over impairment provisions and value adjustments (32) (9)
Common equity tier 1 capital 2,948 2,423
Additional tier 1
Additional tier 1instruments 757 757
Total tier 1 capital 3,705 3,180
Tier2
Tier 2 instruments 706 633
Other adjustments (126) (104)
Total tier 2 capital 580 529
Total capital resources 4,285 3,709
Risk-weighted assets of the Bank (unaudited) 20,195 18,436
Capital ratios of the Bank (unaudited)
Common equity tier 1 capital ratio’ 14.6% 13.1%
Tier 1 capital ratio® 18.3% 17.2%
Total capital ratio’ 21.2% 20.1%

Includes an adjustment applied to reserves to reflect the application of the IFRS9 9 transitional arrangements for capital.

Reflecting the fullimpact of IFRS 9 at 31 December 2022, without the application of transitional arrangements, the Bank’'s common equity tier 1 capital ratio would be 14.6 per
cent, the tier 1 capital ratio would be 18.3 per cent and the total capital ratio would be 21.2 per cent.

14 Lloyds Bank Corporate Markets plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022



Strategic Report

Financial performance continued

At 31Dec At 31 Dec

2022 2021

Risk-weighted assets of the Bank (unaudited) £m £m
Foundation internal ratings based (IRB) Approach 8,514 7,665
Other IRB Approach’ 510 579
IRB Approach 9,024 8,244
Standardised approach' 1,095 1,337
Credit risk 10,119 9,681
Securitisation 498 571
Counterparty credit risk 5,213 4,024
Credit valuation adjustment risk 302 472
Operational risk 930 855
Market risk 3,133 2933
Total risk-weighted assets 20,195 18,436
Of which threshold risk-weighted assets? 509 555

Threshold risk-weighted assets are now included within Other IRB Approach and the Standardised (STA) approach. In addition securitisation risk-weighted assets are now
shown separately. Comparatives have been presented on a consistent basis.

Threshold risk-weighted assets reflect the element of significant investments and deferred tax assets that are permitted to be risk-weighted instead of being deducted from
CETl capital.

Lloyds Bank Corporate Markets plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022 15



Principal risks
and uncertainties

Strategic Report

The principal risks that could impact LBCM's ability to deliver its long-term strategic
objectives and the approach to managing each risk are reviewed and reported to the
Board Risk Committee regularly in alignment with the risk management framework.

Our enterprise risk
management framework

The LBG enterprise risk management framework
(ERMF) applies to all legal entities and is the
foundation for the delivery of effective and
consistent risk control. It enables proactive
identification, active management and
monitoring of LBCM'’s risks, which is supported by
our One Risk and Control Self-Assessment
approach.

LBCM has adopted the ERMF, supplemented with
additional tailored practices set out to address
LBCM-specific requirements. The EMRF and the
LBCM RMF applies to LBCM business across all
legal entities and locations.

LBG operates a Shared Services Model, under
which the Ring-Fenced Bank sub-group provides
key resources and services (including people,
systems and processes) to other sub-groups
including LBCM.

16 Lloyds Bank Corporate Markets plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022

LBCM's risk appetite, principles, policies,
procedures, controls and reporting are regularly
reviewed and updated to ensure they remain in
line with regulation, law, corporate governance
and industry good practice.

Risk appetite is defined within LBCM as the amount
and type of risk that it is prepared to seek, accept
or tolerate in delivering its strategy. As a separate
legal group with its own parent Board, LBCM
maintains its own risk appetite which is aligned to
the LBG approach but is adjusted to reflect the
specific characteristics of LBCM's balance sheet
and portfolio, including its international presence.
The LBCM Board is responsible for approving
LBCM's risk appetite statement annually. Board-
level risk appetite metrics are supported by sub-
Board level metrics and cascaded into more
detailed business metrics and limits.

Regular close monitoring and comprehensive
reporting to management and the Board ensures
risk appetite limits are maintained and subject to
stress analysis at a risk type and portfolio level, as
appropriate.



Strategic Report

Principal risks and uncertainties continued

Our enterprise risk management framework continued

Governance is maintained through delegation of authority from the Board down to subsidiary boards and
to individuals. Senior executives are supported by a committee-based structure which is designed to
ensure open challenge and enable effective Board engagement and decision-making.

Risk culture and the customer

The Board and senior management play a vital role in shaping and embedding a supportive risk culture.
Senior leaders set a clear tone from the top and lead by example reflecting LBG values, encouraging a
culture of intellectual curiosity, innovation and proactive risk management amongst all colleagues.

Enterprise risk management framework

Role of the
Board and

The governance framework supports a consistent approach to enterprise-wide .
behaviour and decision-making. LBCM has its own risk management committee Risk Governance
structure.

The robust approach to monitoring oversight and assurance ensures effective risk >
management across the Group. LBCM follow the same approach as set out in the Three Lines of Defence
ERMF.

o The Board delegates executive authorities to ensure there is effective oversight of risk management. LBCM
operates its own Board separate from Group. Management P
e The appropriate culture ensures performance, risk and reward are aligned. LBCM follow the same Risé(n(:’utlatére “;,_
approach as set out in the ERMF. Customer o
The framework ensures our risks are managed in line with our risk appetite. LBCM has its own ) ) [¢)
e Risk Appetite which is approved by the LBCM Board and noted by the Group Board, but follows Risk Appetite %
the same approach as set out in the ERMF. %
Q
e The identification, measurement and control or our risks form an integral part of our One Risk and Control Self ?1
Risk and Control Self Assessment. LBCM follow the same approach as set out in the ERMF. Assessment bl

Current thematic and emerging risks

The external risks faced by LBCM may also impact the success of delivering LBCM'’s long-term strategic
objectives. Throughout 2022, the outlook for a number of macroeconomic variables for the UK deteriorated
despite the post-COVID-19 recovery seen early in the year. The war between Russia and Ukraine has driven
higher commodity prices, financial markets volatility and aggravated existing inflationary pressures and
supply chain disruptions have added to the cost of living challenges and pressures on the UK economy,
where LBCM mainly operates.

Likewise, the long-term impacts of COVID-19 will continue to weigh on the economic and political
environment across the global economies.

In addition, LBCM continues to monitor and address current thematic risks that could have an adverse
impact on business model, financial conditions, operations and its ability to achieve revenue targets.
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Principal risks and uncertainties continued

Current thematic and emerging risks continued

_m, e The,glx;f,émrjd,mg pace of regulatory S v
L —— ‘“""chﬁgé’sand increased oversight, which coud
> _increase costs and prudenttd‘fesourcs;{ N
requirements for LBCM aneresult chan

— 'x:..h&%%gmgperm‘hg structure omd creqte

i

e . risks from non-compliance thatinclud,
; censure, fines and removal of busmess
permissions to operate

« Climaterisk is the risk that LBCM experiences
losses and [or reputational damage as a resu
of clumote chomge elther dlrectly or throu Qe

financing by more than 50| per cent by2030 gnd
achieving net zero financed emissions by 2050
(refer Lloyds Banking Group annual report 2022
and the LBG enwronmental sustainability report)

« The effectlveness of proprietary models as models are at risk of elng |nsuff|0|ent \
due to the limitations of historical data, the recent extreme market volatility, dnd the risk of _
ineffectiveness in pardmetensotlon implementation, oversight and monitoring = -

« Negotiations that are still in progress between the UK and the EU, which continues to create
uncertainty on the future UK legal and regulatory framework with the potential forthe UKto
deviate from the EU’s legal and regulatory system. The scope of LBCM's busmess model in the

EU includes the LBCM plc EU subsidiary (“Lioyds Bank Corpordte Markets T £AY
Wertpapierhandelsbank GMBH”) : : : , e

+ The complexity of the transition from IBORs to Alternative Risk Free Reference Rates which
could have material adverse impacts such as less liquid interest rates, increased litigation or
disputes and higher operational risks

+ The complexity of recruiting and retaining key talent which has been increased due to
changes to employee expectations following the COVID-19 pandemic and significant
structural and regulatory change across the industry may adversely impact LBCM
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Principal risks and uncertainties continued

Principal risks

Capital risk The risk that an insufficient quantity or quality of capital is held to meet regulatory
requirements or to support business strategy, an inefficient level of capital is held or
that capital is inefficiently deployed across LBCM.

Key mitigating actions:

« A comprehensive capital management framework that includes setting of capital risk appetite, capital
planning and stress testing activities, with well-established capital policies and procedures that are subject
to independent oversight

«  Monitoring of capital and leverage ratios to ensure that LBCM meets regulatory requirements, remains within
Board risk appetite and which results in efficient deployment of capital resources

«  Maintaining a recovery plan setting out a range of potential mitigating actions that could be taken in
response to a stress, including the capital contingency framework designed to identify emerging capital
concerns at an early stage

«  Managing the demand for capital through management actions including adjusting the lending strategy, risk
hedging strategies and through business disposals

Change [ execution Therisk that, in delivering its change agenda, LBCM fails to ensure compliance with laws
and regulation, maintain effective customer service and availability, and/or operate
within LBCM'’s risk appetite.

Key mitigating actions:

. Setting (and operating within) the Board level risk appetite for change and execution risk. LBCM monitors
metrics provided by LBG as service provider at board and sub-board level. Change and execution risk is
measured through a combination of risk indicators and quality and delivery indicators. These are under
evolution and enhancement to ensure ongoing support of the change and transformation agenda

«  Ensuring compliance with the change policy and associated policies and procedures, which set out the
principles and key controls that apply across the business and are aligned to LBCM's risk appetite

« Assessment by the business of the potential impacts of undertaking change activity on its ability to execute
effectively, on customers and colleagues and the potential consequences for the existing risk profiles

« Implementation of effective governance and control frameworks to ensure the adequacy of controls to
manage the change activity and act to mitigate the change/execution risks identified. These controls are
monitored in line with the change policy and enterprise risk management framework

« Escalation of events related to change activities to ensure that they are managed appropriately in line with
risk framework guidance

The risk that parties with whom LBCM has contracted fail to meet their financial
obligations (both on and off-balance sheet).
Key mitigating actions:
«  Prudent, through-the-cycle credit principles, risk policies and appetite statements, to manage risk effectively

« Robust risk assessment and credit sanctioning to ensure appropriate and responsible lending

«  Extensive and thorough credit processes and controls to ensure effective and timely risk identification,
management and oversight

«  Early identification of signs of stress leading to engagement with customers

« Regular and robust independent credit risk assurances
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Principal risks and uncertainties continued

The risk of detriment across the customer life cycle including: failures in product
management, distribution and servicing activities; from other risks materialising, or
other activities which could undermine the integrity of the market or distort
competition, leading to unfair customer outcomes, regulatory censure, reputational
damage or financial loss.

Customer harm or detriment is defined as consumer loss, distress or inconvenience to
customers due to breaches of regulatory or internal requirements or our wider duty to
act fairly and reasonably.

The introduction of Consumer Duty has increased regulatory expectations in relation to
customer outcomes for consumers. The direct impact for LBCM, considering its business
and customer base, is limited, however LBCM will reflect LBG standards where
appropriate.

Key mitigating actions:

«  Conduct risk appetite and associated metrics provide a granular view of how LBCM's products and services
are performing for customers through the customer life cycle

« Conduct policies and procedures are in place to ensure appropriate controls and systems that deliver fair
customer outcomes and support market integrity and competition requirements

«  Customer needs are considered through customer plans, with integral conduct lens

«  Create a values-led culture through a focus on behaviours to ensure LBCM is transforming its culture for
success in a digital world. This is supported by strong direction and tone from senior executives and the Board

+  Robust product governance framework to ensure products continue to offer customers fair value, and
consistently meet their needs throughout their product lifecycle

«  Root cause analysis, complaint management and customer accountabilities for colleagues, with rewards
driven by customer centric metrics

«  Ongoing enhancements and embedding of LBCM’s framework to support customers, including in particular
those in vulnerable circumstances

«  Continued focus on market conduct; membership to the Fixed Income, Currencies and Commodities Markets
Standard Board; and commitment to conducting market activities consistent with the principles of the UK
Money Markets Code, the Global Precious Metals Code and the FX Global Code

«  Adoption of robust change delivery methodology to enable prioritisation and delivery of initiatives to address
conduct challenges

«  Continued focus on proactive identification and mitigation of conduct risk in LBCM's strategy

« Active engagement with regulatory bodies and other stakeholders to develop understanding of concerns
related to customer treatment, effective competition and market integrity, to ensure that LBCM's strategic
conduct focus continues to meet evolving stakeholder expectations

«  Review and oversight of thematic conduct agenda items at senior committees, ensuring holistic
consideration of key conduct risks

+  Robust recruitment and training, with a continued focus on how LBCM manages colleagues’ performance
with clear customer accountabilities

+  On-going engagement with third-parties involved in serving LBCM’s customers to ensure consistent delivery

The risk of LBCM failing to govern, manage, and control its data (including data
processed by third party suppliers) effectively, leading to unethical decisions, poor
customer outcomes, loss of value to LBCM and mistrust.

Key mitigating actions:

Mitigation strategies are adopted to reduce data governance, management, privacy and ethical risks. Control
assessments are logged and tracked on the One Risk and Control Self-Assessment system with supporting metrics.
Investment continues to be made to deliver a comprehensive data strategy to:

+ Embed a dato-led culture
«  Build robust data foundations with front-to-back controls, quality and governance
« Investinfit for purpose, scalable data platforms and analytical tooling

«  Deliver real-time data insight capability and increase data value-generation
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Principal risks and uncertainties continued

Funding / liquidity Funding risk is defined as the risk that LBCM does not have sufficiently stable and
risk

diverse sources of funding or that the funding structure is inefficient. Liquidity risk is
defined as the risk that financial resources are insufficient to meet commitments as
they fall due or can only be obtained at excessive cost.

Key mitigating actions:

Ensuring that LBCM's liquidity risk management framework is adequate with regard to the internal risk
appetite, strategy and regulatory requirements. Liquidity policies and procedures are subject to independent
internal oversight by the Risk team.

Holding a liquidity buffer to cover potential cash and collateral net outflows calibrated to support strategic
and operational needs as well as regulatory requirements and internal risk appetite.

Undertaking monitoring against a number of market and entity specific early warning indicators
complemented with stress testing analysis

Maintaining a contingency funding plan detailing actions and strategies available in stressed conditions
Maintaining a diversified funding sources including a Euro Medium Term Note programme

The risk that LBCM'’s capital or earnings profile is affected by adverse market rates, in
particular changes and volatility in interest and foreign exchange rates, inflation rates,

commodity prices and credit spreads through activity in the banking and markets
businesses.

Key mitigating actions:

Setting an appropriate market risk policy in line with risk appetite, operating within its parameters and the
supplementary procedures that underpin it

Undertaking regular monitoring of market risk positions versus limits and triggers to ensure they remain
within limits which are calibrated in line with risk appetite

Reducing risk in a cost-effective manner including the externalisation to financial markets where market
liquidity allows

Structural hedge programmes implemented to manage liability margins and the risk of margin compression

Operational The risk that LBCM fails to design resilience into business operations, underlying
resilience risk infrastructure and controls (people, process and technical) to withstand external or

internal events that could impact the continuity of operations or alternatively the failure
to respond to events in a way which meets stakeholder expectations and needs when
the continuity of operations is compromised.

Key mitigating actions:

Designing resilience into LBCM's operations through embedding of an enhanced target operating model
Identification of LBCM's important business services and impact tolerance for disruption

Continued optimisation of the LBCM approach to IT and operational resilience, through LBG, by investing in
technology improvements and enhancing the resilience of systems that support LBCM's critical business

processes and important business services

Investment continues to improve LBCM's approach to identity and access management, capability to detect,
respond and recover from cyber-attacks and ability to manage vulnerabilities across the estate

Ensuring that the operational resilience risk profile needs are reassessed and prioritised in line with strategic
change

Setting and monitoring Board level risk appetite, and testing ability to remain within impact tolerance

Continued optimisation and investment in people controls and processes, property and sourcing assets
supporting important business services
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Principal risks and uncertainties continued

The risk of financial loss, regulatory censure, reputational damage or customer
detriment from deficiencies in developing, applying and operating models and rating
systems.

Key mitigating actions

A comprehensive model risk management framework provides the foundation for managing and mitigating model
risk within LBCM

« Defined roles and responsibilities, including clear ownership and accountability, independent oversight and
approval

«  Principles and controls regarding data integrity, development, validation, implementation, on-going
maintenance and revalidation, monitoring, and the process for non-compliance

+  Model monitoring, independent review and periodic validation and re-approval

Operational risk The risk of inadequate or failed internal processes, people or systems, or external
events, leading to loss. This includes cyber-attack, internal and/or external fraud or
financial crime, IT systems failures as well as failure to ensure compliance with
regulation.

Key mitigating actions

« Therisk management framework establishes robust arrangements for risk governance, in particular through
clear definition of individual and collective accountabilities for risk management, risk oversight and risk
assurance through a three lines of defence model which supports the discharge of responsibilities to
customers, shareholders and regulators

« Continued investment in the control environment by both LBCM and its shared service provider, including
third party providers, with a move towards automated preventative and real-time detective controls

+  Manual and detective controls deployed on an interim basis to prevent gaps as more strategic controls are
developed and deployed

« Deployment of enhanced cyber controls to detect, protect against and respond to threats to the
confidentiality or integrity of information assets, or the availability of systems, and to ensure effective
assurance of third-party provision

+  Enhancing technology infrastructure and the resilience of systems (including focus on simplification of IT
architecture and the decommissioning of legacy systems) that support critical business processes

« Application of a risk-based approach to mitigate financial crime and both internal and external fraud risk

«  Working with industry bodies and law enforcement agencies to identify and combat fraud and money
laundering

« Rigorous oversight of relevant management at business area and entity-level committees

Strategic risk Strategic risk is defined as the risk which results from:
e Incorrect assumptions about internal or external operating environments

* Failure to understand the potential impact of strategic responses and business
plans on existing risk types

* Failure to respond or the inappropriate strategic response to material changes
in the external or internal operating environments

Key mitigating actions:

« Horizon scanning is conducted across LBCM to identify potential threats, risks, emerging issues and
opportunities and to explore future trends

« LBCM's business planning processes include formal assessment of the strategic risk implications of new
business, product entries and other strategic initiatives

+ LBCM's governance framework mandates individuals’ and committees’ responsibilities and decision-making
rights, to ensure that strategic risks are appropriately reported and escalated
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Principal risks and uncertainties continued

Operational risk: LBG’s chosen ring-fencing operating model introduces risk for LBCM in the execution of
shared services that model as a shared service recipient.

model (SSM) Key risks include:

» Keyreliance on the SSM creates internal service provision risk. This may be
elevated in situations where LBCM’s priorities are not wholly aligned with those
of the wider LBG

« Business processrisk (i.e. non-adherence to key processes, including those
relating to market, operational, capital, credit, economic crime prevention and
funding and liquidity risk)

« Information security and cyber risk including access management, records,
data protection and cyber

» IT systemsrisk due to reliance on the shared service from LBG’s IT department

« Reliance on the SSM to operate a number of key controls and processes
designed to detect, prevent and respond to economic crime

» Operational risk around business resilience, change activity and sourcing

+ Impact of resourcing challenges LBG faces around attracting and retaining
people with the necessary skills

Key mitigating actions:
LBCM has arrangements in place to assess, monitor and take action on risks arising from the SSM which include:

«  Service performance and reporting to ensure that management information is provided to the LBCM
executive to monitor and respond to the effectiveness of service provision

« An established process put in place to highlight and work through conflicts of interest between LBCM and the
wider LBG where they arise and could impact delivery of the SSM

«  Service agreements in the form of a legally binding IGA is in place to ensure required standard for services

«  Service governance arrangements to ensure that LBCM can manage, monitor and escalate service risks to
relevant Boards

«  Service audit rights are incorporated within the IGA, allowing LBCM to audit the services provided by LBG

People risk The risk that LBCM fails to provide an appropriate colleague and customer centric
culture, supported by robust reward and wellbeing policies and processes; effective
leadership to manage colleague resources; effective talent and succession
management; and control framework to ensure all colleague related requirements are
met.

Key mitigating actions:

«  Focusing on leadership and colleague engagement, through targeted strategies to attract, retain and
develop high calibre people together with implementation of effective succession planning

«  Continued focus on LBCM's culture and inclusivity strategy by developing and delivering initiatives that
reinforce the appropriate behaviours which generate the best possible long-term outcomes for customers
and colleagues

«  Managing organisational capability and capacity to ensure that LBCM has the right skills and resources to
meet customer needs and deliver its strategic plan

+  Maintaining remuneration arrangements to ensure they promote an appropriate culture and colleague
behaviours that meet customer needs and regulatory expectations

«  Ensuring colleague wellbeing strategies and support are in place to meet colleague needs and alongside
skills and capability growth required to maximise the potential of our people

«  Ensuring compliance with legal and regulatory requirements related to senior manager and certification
regime, embedding compliant and appropriate colleague behaviours in line with LBG policies, values and its
people risk priorities

+  Reviewing and enhancing people processes to ensure they are fit for purpose and operationally resilient

«  Key people resources provided under the SSM are managed under an adequate people services agreement
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Principal risks and uncertainties continued

CEC T LIGTRACTT REC T The risk arising from the failure to identify, assess, correctly interpret or, comply with
risk regulatory and/or legal requirements, leading to customer detriment, failure to prevent
and/or detect economic crime, financial penailties, regulatory censure, criminal or civil
enforcement action.

Key mitigating actions:

« LBCM's Board has established a risk appetite and metric for regulatory and legal risk

«  Compliance and legal risk management policies and procedures are designed to ensure appropriate
controls and systems are in place to comply with applicable laws, rules and regulations

«  Framework and processes are in place to monitor on-going compliance with new legislation and regulation

+ Ongoing investment in people, processes, training and IT is being made to assess impact and help meet its
legal and regulatory commitments

« On-going horizon scanning is undertaken to identify and address changes in regulatory and legal
requirements

«  Engagement with regulatory authorities and industry bodies on forthcoming legal and regulatory changes,
market reviews and investigations is taking place

+  Mechanisms for the business are in place to identify, assess and monitor risks, providing appropriate
management information, and with robust oversight and escalation routes

«  Oversight, proactive support and constructive challenge to the business in identifying and managing
regulatory and legal issues is undertaken by the compliance and legal functions

« Thematic reviews of regulatory compliance and oversight of regulatory compliance assessments across
businesses and divisions are undertaken where appropriate

Financial risk management objectives and policies

Information regarding the financial risk management objectives and policies of LBCM, in relation to the use of
financial instruments, is given in notes 34 and 36 to the accounts. LBCM's approach to risk management including risk
policies, risk appetite, measurement bases and sensitivities, in particular for credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk, is
aligned to those of Lloyds Banking Group plc, the Bank’s ultimate parent. Further information can be found in the
Lloyds Banking Group plc annual report.

LBCM maintains risk management systems and internal controls relating to the financial reporting processes
designed to:

«  Ensure that accounting policies are appropriately and consistently applied
« Enable the calculation, preparation and reporting of financial outcomes in line with applicable standards

«  Ensure that disclosures are made on a timely basis in accordance with statutory and regulatory
requirements
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The directors acknowledge that one of the
primary responsibilities of the Board is to ensure
the strategy of the Bank, as aligned to that of
LBG, achieves long-term success and generates
sustainable returns, central to which is ensuring
engagement with our stakeholder, and
considering in all instances the long-term
implications of decisions made, acting at all
times to maintain the highest possible
standards of conduct.

Further details on key actions in this regard are
also contained within the Directors’ report and the
Corporate Governance Statement.

Key stakeholders

A © &
Customers Shareholder Colleagues
% @« Kk &P

Diversity Communities and Suppliers
the environment

Regulators

In accordance with the Companies Act 2006 (the
Act) (as amended by the Companies
(Miscellaneous Reporting) Regulations 2018), the
directors provide the following statement
describing how they have had regard to the
matters set out in section 172(1) of the Act, when
performing their duty to promote the success of
the Bank under section 172.

In accordance with the Large and Medium-sized
Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports)
Regulations 2008 (as amended by the Companies
(Miscellaneous Reporting) Regulations 2018), the
following statement also provides details of how
the directors have engaged with and had regard to
the interests of key stakeholders.

The Bank is a subsidiary of LBG, and as such adopts
many of the processes and practices of LBG, which
are further referred to in this statement where
relevant.
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Section 172(1) Statement continued

Customers

Strategic Report

The Board’s deep understanding of customers’ needs is
vital in setting and achieving the Bank’s goals.
Delighting our customers and identifying their needs
through a customer-centric approach remains
therefore a key consideration in Board decisions. The
directors ensure the Bank works towards achieving its
customers’ ambitions, treating customers fairly, and
making it easy for customers to find, understand and
access products that are suitable for their needs.

The Board is committed to providing meaningful
support to meet the needs of customers, aiming to
provide positive outcomes, and working to mitigate or
reduce the risk of financial harm. To ensure directors
truly understand the needs of customers, customer
feedback and related management information is
regularly considered including as part of the directors’
strategic decision-making process.

The Bank regularly benchmarks its performance and
the performance of its business units amongst its
customers. The directors use this insight along with a
range of internal and external research to ensure
ongoing improvement in customer experience. The
directors ensure the Bank plays an active partin LBG's
wider customer ambitions, as acknowledged in the
Bank’s strategy, and where appropriate during the
course of the year this has included the ongoing
development of market leading digital propositions,
more personalised customer propositions and better
experience for customers across all channels.

The FCA’s new Consumer Duty takes effect in July 2023
and focuses on delivering good outcomes for customers.
Whilst only a subset of the Bank’s customers will be in
scope of the Duty, the Bank is committed to supporting
them in accordance with the FCA’s cross cutting rules
within the Duty: to act in good faith; avoid causing
foreseeable harm; and enable and support retail
customers to pursue their financial objectives. The LBG
Board Consumer Duty Champion represents the Bank in
its preparation for compliance with the Duty.

Shareholder

: T.b.@:chkmg Group p]c

The Bank is a wholly owned subsidiary of LBG, forming
part of its Commercial Banking Division. As a wholly
owned subsidiary, the Board ensures that the strategy,
priorities, processes, and practices of LBCM are aligned
where appropriate to those of LBG, ensuring that its
interests as the Bank’s shareholder are duly
acknowledged. The Bank’s Corporate Governance
Framework sets out the Bank’s relationship with LBG
and the reporting of material matters.

26 Lloyds Bank Corporate Markets plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022

The LBCM Board and its committees provide regular
updates to the LBG Board and its committees on the
Bank’s activities and performance. The LBG Chief
Executive Officer and LBG Chair are invited to attend at
least one Bank Board meeting each year to hold an open
discussion on such matters as the Bank's strategy in the
context of LBG and the operation of the shared service
model. LBG’s non-executive directors (NEDs) are also
invited to attend Board and Committee meetings during
the year at which the Board can share insights and hear
the LBG perspective increasing shareholder engagement.
These arrangements ensure the Bank’s Board has a clear
understanding of the views of its shareholder.

Further information in respect of the relationship of LBG
with its shareholders is included in the Strategic Report
within the LBG Annual Report and Accounts for 2022,
available on the LBG website.



Section 172(1) statement continued

Colleagues

The Board considers that maintaining open dialogue is
crucial in informing its thinking, allowing directors to
hear first-hand colleague views on the matters most
important to them, and to the Bank. Throughout 2022
the Board received regular updates on workforce'
engagement and on colleague matters through a
combination of direct colleague listening sessions and
updates from the LBCM People Director. Trends
identified through the colleague listening sessions
included for example, new ways of working, specifically
in relation to the platform and shared service operating
model and compensation in the context of the cost-of-
living crisis.

As COVID-19 restrictions on meetings and travel
reduced over 2022, the Board was able to resume
visiting offices across jurisdictions to hold meetings and
engage with colleagues. In addition, the Board
continued to engage with the senior management
team for ad hoc conversations outside of regular Board
activity and held a series of Board and colleague in-
person breakfast events, allowing for open two-way
dialogue with colleagues from across the different
business areas and jurisdictions on a range of topics
including sustainability, strategy, culture, and inclusion
and diversity. To support business as usual activity,
Board members took the opportunity to visit business
areas to speak directly with colleagues to learn more
about the business first-hand, hear about their
concerns and discuss new ways of working. The Chair
continued to proactively engage in congratulating the
winners of monthly awards for colleagues making a
significant difference in delighting customers and
reducing bureaucracy.

During the year, the Board gained further understanding
of colleague views through surveys completed by
colleagues across the Bank. These included the annual
colleague survey, ad hoc ‘Pulse’ surveys, and
participation by colleagues in the external survey of the
Financial Services Culture Board. The Board continues to
be updated on the actions arising out of the surveys.

The directors consider these arrangements invaluable
in giving them an understanding of the views of the
workforce and encouraging meaningful dialogue
between the Board and the workforce.

During the year, the Bank also communicated directly
with colleagues detailing its performance and that of
LBG, changes in the economic and regulatory
environment, and updates on key strategic initiatives.
The Board was especially mindful of the impacts on
colleagues of the strategic changes made during 2022
and focus on how the Bank aligns to LBG's strategy
remained consistent in communications. Furthermore,
with the launch of the new LBG Values,
communications have sought to embed these as key
enablers to driving LBCM's culture.

Strategic Report

UK colleagues are remunerated by LBG (and recharged
tothe chk), while colleagues based in US, Germany and
Crown Dependencies are remunerated by LBCM. UK and
US colleagues are eligible to participate in HMRC/IRAS
approved share plans which promote share ownership
by giving employees an opportunity to invest in LBG
shares. Further information can be found in the Directors’
Remuneration Report within the LBG Annual Report and
Accounts for 2022, available on the LBG welbsite.

During 2022, the Bank has continued to provide essential
financial services to its customers by implementing
business changes to manage the continuing effects of
the pandemic and have reviewed every iteration of the
government advice in the UK and local advice across the
jurisdictions in which it operates.

2022 saw the embedding of the Bank’s future workstyles
and as a result has seen an increase in the number of
colleagues returning to the office. The majority of
colleagues now operate using a hybrid working
arrangement which can vary by team and role. Regular
and open engagement with colleagues has been crucial,
keeping colleagues informed of workstyles in each
business as colleagues transitioned to new ways of
working. The Board has ensured that the workforce has
been supported with this transition and has continued to
monitor the approach as they transition back to their
offices.

In support of colleagues, Speak Up (LBG's whistleblowing
programme) enables colleagues to raise matters of
concern. Andrew Mclntyre is the Bank’s Whistleblowing
Champion and is responsible for overseeing the integrity,
independence, and effectiveness of LBG's whistleblowing
procedures for the Bank. The Audit Committee receives
reports on whistleblowing to ensure there are
arrangements in place which colleagues can use in
confidence to report relevant concerns.

1 The definition of ‘workforce’ as agreed by the Board is permanent employees, contingent workers and third-party suppliers that work on LBG premises delivering

services to customers and supporting key business operations.
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Section 172(1) statement continued

Diversity

The Board believes a diverse workforce is vital to the Bank’'s success
and values the differences each colleague brings to their role, making
the Bank stronger and better able to meet the needs of its customers.

The Board supports colleague engagement through the Bank’s Race
Action Plan introduced in July 2020 and an array of talent
programmes for women, black, Asian and minority ethic colleagues
in order to drive race and gender related cultural change, recruitment
and progression to attract and retain diverse talent in the Bank.

The Bank continues to focus on increasing the representation of Black,
Asian and Ethnic Minority colleagues in senior roles to at least 13%,
representation of Black heritage colleagues in senior roles to at least
3%, and 50% women in senior roles by 2025 in line with LBG's diversity
agenda.

The Board's focus on inclusion and diversity has extended to all the
jurisdictions in which LBCM operates which have their own
demographic profile. The Bank has successfully launched a dedicated
Inclusion and Diversity Forum to support the progress of initiatives
including the Race Action Plan, gender and LGBTQ initiatives and
diversity priorities such as disability awareness across all jurisdictions.

Communities and the environment

The directors acknowledge that the Bank, as part of one
of the largest financial service providers in the UK, has
responsibilities to invest in the communities in which it
operates, to help them prosper economically and build
a more sustainable future. As such the directors receive
regular updates on responsible and sustainable
business activities.

The Bank has aligned with LBG sustainability objectives,
including the current ‘Net Zero by 2050’ climate pledge,
which is a key part of the Bank’s ESG strategy and
directly supports global external goals. Additionally, the
Bank continues to contribute towards LBG’s Helping

Britain Prosper strategy. The directors actively support BCM colleagues Vo n
the delivery of LBG's ambition to be a leading UK bank in
the green/sustainable bonds market through the Bank’s
green bond activity. Throughout 2022, the Bank acted in
11 ESG-linked transactions.

To achieve this, it has provided additional staff training,
promoted alternative business travel transport methods
for customer interactions and the use of commuting
methods with lower carbon emissions, such as utilising
the Cycle to Work scheme, and introduced tools to
monitor progress.

The Bank is also active in reducing its carbon footprint
by aligning with LBG’s 3P’s campaign, Partnerships,
Prioritisation and Pace.

The Bank has been actively engaged in fundraising and
volunteering events across its jurisdictions. The
directors receive regular updates on how the Bank is
progressing on supporting its communities. Within the
Crown Dependencies, the Bank works with the Lloyds
Bank Foundation for the Channel Islands which
supports several charities through grants and a wide
range of developmental support to help local
communities thrive. In North America, the Bank has
LBCMEolleaguesirom New completed fundraising to help empower individuals with
York branch, v‘slunteering autism and developmental disabilities to lead fulfilling
B Sep 2022 lives through their partnership with Birch Family Services.
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Section 172(1) statement continued

[

The Board recognises the importance of partners
who provide aspects of the Bank’s operations
and customer service provision through the
shared service model with LBG. The Bank’s
approach to external supplier management
follows that of LBG and aligns to the Prudential
Regulation Authority (PRA) Supervisory
Statement (SS) 2/21 on Outsourcing and Third-
Party Risk Management (TPRM), which came
into effect on the 31 March 2022. The supply chain
is crucial to the way the Bank and LBG serves its
customers, and through it the reach is
considerable.

Regulators and regulatory agenda

Strategic Report

Suppliers

The Bank and LBG seek to improve the experience of
suppliers, with feedback regularly sought on related
assurance processes to ensure continued improvement
in the process. Suppliers are also encouraged to express
their satisfaction or otherwise and have access to LBG
and the Bank’s whistleblowing service.

Importance is placed on having the right supplier
framework to operate responsibly. LBG's Sourcing and
Supply Chain Management Policy applies to alll
businesses, divisions, and subsidiaries of LBG, including
the Bank, with the directors assuming ultimate
responsibility for its application as relevant to the Bank.
This Policy has been designed to assist in managing the
inherent risk in outsourcing services, and in dealing with
third-party suppliers. Suppliers are required to adhere to
relevant LBG policies and comply with LBG's Code of
Supplier Responsibility which can be found on the LBG
website. This defines expectations for responsible
business behaviour, underpinning the efforts of the Bank
and LBG to share and extend good practice. All material
contracts are subject to rigorous cost management
governance with regular review of key supplier risks.

The operation of the Bank’s supply chain is through LBG.
The Board supports LBG's zero tolerance attitude towards
modern slavery in LBG's supply chain and an assurance
process of the measures which address the risk of
human trafficking and modern slavery in the wider
supply chain is undertaken by the Bank.

The Bank and its directors maintain an open, and
transparent relationship with relevant regulators and
other authorities and liaise regularly both directly and
as part of LBG to ensure business aligns to the
requirements of these important stakeholders.

The Chair and individual directors have in the ordinary
course of business had continuing discussions with the
Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) and PRA on a number
of aspects of the regulatory agenda. The Board in turn
reviewed regular updates on this and progress is being
made in addressing key regulatory priorities. Key areas
of interest for the Board have included ensuring robust
prudential standards, the fair treatment of customers,
and the response to market changes. During the year
such changes have included not only the long-term
impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic, but the disruption
triggered by the Russian and Ukraine conflict, and
inflationary pressure.

Regular updates at Board Risk Committee also cover all
aspects of the regulatory agenda including emerging
regulatory and legal risks. This provides a focused view
of areas of priority alongside detail of regulators
actions.

Sl I M"'Frdr)kfurt »

The Board continues to closely monitor the status of the
Bank’s regulatory relationships across all the jurisdictions
in which it has a presence, seeking to enhance
engagement particularly in key areas of regulatory
change. During the coming year, this is expected to
include financial and operational resilience including for
the prevention of financial crime, Model Risk
Management, credit risk including the standardised
approach to counterparty credit risk (SA-CCR), and
change/execution risk.
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Black heritage
representationin seniorroles
senior roles by by 2025
management levels by 2025 2025

Black, Asian and Minority
Ethnic colleagues
representation at senior

Inclusion and diversity

LBCM, as part of LBG, aims to create a more
inclusive future for our customers,
colleagues and communities. We will
continue to create a fully inclusive
organisation that is representative of the
modern-day countries in which we operate,
where differences are embraced, and
everyone can reach their potential.

Read more about the aspirations relating to
ethic and gender diversity, disability, sexual
orientation and gender identity on page 34
of the LBG 2022 annual report and accounts.

Strategic Report

}

50%

Womenin

Our values

Our strategy sets out our plan to become a
truly purpose-driven organisation and our
culture is a fundamental enabler of that.

The 5 values below provide colleagues with
a clear and simple framework to guide their
behaviours and approach to decision
making. Since launching the new values,
activities are underway across LBCM and
LBG to deepen colleagues’ understanding
and to ensure everyone is living the values
day-to-day and embedding them into
decision making — from everyday choices to
big strategic decisions.

A A P
able ~first sive d
We trust each other to We champion sustainability We put people first to go We're inclusive to We're bold and
achieve more together to care for our planet further for customers value everyone take action
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‘I am passionate about
LBCM colleagues going the
extra mile to provide a top

class service level to our

customers and it is a pleasure
to congratulate the winner
each month on behalf of
the Board”

Lord Lupton CBE,
Chair of the Board

Strategic Report

LBCM's Delighting the
Customer’ awards recognise
and celebrate key customer
activity across LBCM. Every
month, LBCM's Executive
Committee chooses a
‘Colleague of the Month' from
the many nominations
submitted from across our
business.

Delighting the customer award winners

Congratulations and thank you to our colleagues of the month
winners who have demonstrated our values and delivered a first
class service to our customers.

Jacqueline Munro  Mark Stevens Beatrice Fru Ndi

Risk Islands Commercial Financial Markets
Banking

Katrina Foulkes Caitriona Greene  Kerry Thompson

Islands Commercial Islands Operations and  Islands Commerciall
Banking Community Banking Banking

David Clarke Asif Mahmood Frank Alfano

Is|qnds Commercial Islands Risk New York Risk
Banking

Marisa Fershing Adrian Meade Sophie Husselbee

New York Risk Islands Commercial Risk
Banking
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The directors present their onnuol‘-réport and audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Information included in the Strategic Report incorporated in the Directors’ Report by reference:
+ Statement of employee engagement: page 27
+ Statement of other stakeholder engagement: pages 25-29
« Principal risks and uncertainties: pages 16-24
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Good corporate ;
governance underpi
LBCM's abilityto

support our customers

and to meet the nt
of our stakeholder

\'\/‘ _— s ‘}Ltt ——
The role of the Board \§ K Al

The Board is collectively responsible for promoting and assessing the long-term, sustainable success
of LBCM, generating value and contributing to wider society. The Board establishes the purpose, values
and strategy and seeks to ensure that LBCM is Helping Britain Prosper.

The key decisions and matters reserved for the Board's approval, such as LBCM's long-term strategy
and priorities, are set out in the Corporate Governance Framework, which is reviewed periodically by
the Board. The Board is supported by its Committees which make decisions or recommendations on
matters as delegated to them under the Corporate Governance Framework, including Board
appointments, the effectiveness of internal controls and the risk management framework, financial
reporting, governance and remuneration policies. This enables the Board to spend a greater
proportion of its time on strategic, forward-looking matters.

Our board and governance structure
Lioyds Bank Corporate Markets pic Boord

Non-executive Company
Directors Secretary

Chair Executive Directors

Lord Lupton CBE Chief Executive Chief Financial Mark Basten Sharon Slattery
Officer officer Eve Henrikson
Carla Antunes da Silva Julienne Daglish Cecile Hillary
Andrew Mcintyre
John Owen*

Rose St Louis o )
* Senior independent director

S A A A A

Nomination and Audit Board Risk Remuneration
Governance Committee Committee Committee
Board Committee
Committees Chair Chair Chair Chair
Lord Lupton CBE Andrew Mcintyre Mark Basten John Owen
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Governance and Directors’ Report continued

Our Board

Establishing our purpose, values and strategy

Lord Lupton CBE
Chair Re

AC
/g -
NG

Senior Independent non-executive
director

Governance

e Committee Chair

AC  Audit Committee member

BR  Board Risk Committee member

NG Nomination and Governance
Committee member

Re  Remuneration Committee member

Appointed: August 2017

Lord Lupton has extensive international
corporate experience having advised UK and
international companies on a wide variety of
major transactions. He was Deputy Chairman of
Baring Brothers for 3 years, until 1998. He went on
to co-found the London office of Greenhill & Co.
and was Chairman of Greenhill Europe until May
2017. A former Treasurer of the Conservative
Party, he became a Life Peer in 2015, serving on
the House of Lords Select Committee on
Charities.

External appointments:

Senior Advisor to Greenhill Europe; Trustee of The
Lovington Foundation; Chairman of the Board of
Visitors of The Ashmolean Museum.

Mark Basten

Independent non-executive director Re

John Owen I
Appointed: September 2017

John has extensive international banking
experience. He worked for the Bank of America
in London and UBS in both the UK and
Switzerland before spending 13 years in various
senior management positions at Credit Suisse.
In 201, he joined RBS where he was the Head of
EMEA and then CEO International Banking,
responsible for client coverage teams, the
international network, lending and transaction
services products as well as the provision of
Markets products.

External appointments:

Local Authority Governor for Mayflower Primary
School, Tower Hamlets.

BR

Andrew Mcintyre
Independent non-executive director NG

Eve Henrikson

Independent non-executive BR
director

Appointed: February 2023

Mark is an experienced risk management
professional, with a broad range of experience
across a variety of sectors, geographies and risk
disciplines including governance forums. He's led
risk management functions at international
banks for more than 25 years. He was Group
Head of Credit for Nomura Securities and Head of
Risk for Nomura International until 201, when he
went on to serve as Chief Risk Officer for ICBC
Standard Bank plc until 2020.

External appointments:
None

Appointed: September 2017

Andrew is a Chartered Accountant and has
broad boardroom experience with major public
companies. He chaired the board of Southern
Housing Group for nine years and has served as
a non-executive director at both the Centre for
Economic Policy Research and National Bank of
Greece. He spent a majority of his executive
career at Ernst & Young, acting for many of the
firm'’s largest financial services clients.

External appointments:

Senior Independent Director, Non-Executive
Director and Audit / Risk Committee Chaiir at C.
Hoare & Co; Audit Committee Chair Cavamont
Holdings Limited; Non-Executive Director and
Audit Committee Chair at both Benefact Group
plc and Target Group Limited; member
Federated Hermes Property Unit Trust
Appointments Committee and Chair Federated
Hermes Property Unit Trust Audit Committee.
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Appointed: September 2020

Eve has extensive experience in Digital in a
variety of industries and international
markets, spanning Europe, the US and Asia.
She has been leading Digital businesses and
transformation for over 20 years, including
large online operations and P&Ls at Tesco
and Uber. She is currently managing Europe,
Middle East and Africa for Uber Eats. In her
non-executive career, she has held roles
with Scout Shop Limited and World Scout
Shops Limited.

External appointments:

Regional General Manager Delivery EMEA,
Uber Portier BV (Uber Eats); Fellow — Forward
Institute.



Governance and Directors’ Report continued

Our Board

Establishing our purpose, values and strategy

Cecile Hillary
Internal non-executive director

Rose St Louis

Internal non-executive director

Appointed: November 2022

Cecile became LBG's Treasurer in October
2021, having joined as Deputy Treasurer in
March 2021. Prior to that, she had a 24 year
career in banking at JPMorgan, Morgan
Stanley and Barclays, based in London.
During that time, she worked and ran
businesses across client advisory,
securitisation, capital markets, and
derivatives.

External appointments:

None

-:»’a\ : |
Carla Antunes da Silva

Executive director and Chief Executive
Officer

Appointed: September 2022

Rose joined Lloyds Banking Group in March
2021 as a Protection Director responsible for
leading the Group’s protection business
across the intermediary, retail and digital
channels. She has over 25 years’ experience
in the financial services industry in a diverse
range of roles from insurance to wealth
management. Rose is a leading figure in the
UK protection market and is recognised for
her inclusive approach to customer delivery
underpinned by purpose and culture.

External appointments:

Member of the Association of British Insurers
Health and Protection board; member of the
Insurance United Against Dementia board.

A

Julienne Daglish

Executive director and Chief
Financial Officer

Governance

Sharon Slattery
Company Secretary

Appointed: February 2023

Carla was appointed as the CEO for LBCM in
February 2023, having previously served as
internal non-executive director for five years.
From 2015 to January 2023, Carla led LBG's
strategic work as Group Strategy, Corporate
Development and IR Director. She was
responsible for making recommendations to
senior stakeholders of the group on all areas

of major strategic significance including M&A,

joint ventures and partnerships and
managing relationships with the wider
investment community.

Prior to that, Carla spent 18 years as an Equity
Analyst for European banks, working for
Credit Suisse, JP Morgan and Deutsche Bank.

External appointments:

Non-Executive Director, Novo Banco; Member
of the Investment Committee, St. Edmund
Hall, University of Oxford

Appointed: April 2021

Julienne was appointed Chief Financial
Officer LBCM in April 2021. She previously held
the role of Chief Risk Officer for LBCM.

She has more than 25 years Markets
experience, where she ran Structured
Products within Trading before taking on the
role of Chief Operating Officer for Financial
Markets in LBG. In addition she has held
customer facing roles in Commercial Banking
International Private Banking and spent time
in Strategic Development.

External Appointments:

Member and Deputy Chair of the Audit Risk
and Compliance Committee for King's
College London; Co-Optee on Audit
Investment and Risk Committee for Lloyds
Bank Foundation for England and Wales

Appointed: August 2017

Sharon joined Lloyds Banking Group over 25
years ago following its acquisition of Lloyds
Abbey life in 1996. She has over 30 years’
experience in corporate governance and
company secretarial practice. Sharon has
held a variety of roles within the Group as
secretary to boards, board committees and
senior management committees at all levels
of the organisation. She has broad UK listed
company experience from managing
continuing obligation requirements, annual
reporting and AGM project management
through to share capital and employee share
plan administration. During her career she
has worked on a number of corporate
actions including the acquisitions of Lloyds
Abbey Life, Scottish Widows and HBOS.
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Governance and Directors’ Report continued

Executive Committee

Governance

Delivering our strategy and day-to-day management

The role of the Executive Committee

The executive directors make decisions within the parameters and
principles set out in the Corporate Governance Framework, which
aims to ensure that decisions are made by management under the
correct authority. There are executive committees established to
support and advise the Chief Executive Officer, in particular the
Executive Committee. The other committees which bring subject
matter expertise and analysis are the Asset and Liability, Operating,
Product Governance and Risk committees.

Carla Antunes da Silva

Executive director and Chief
Executive Officer

Julienne Daglish

Executive director and Chief M
Financial Officer

' Committee Chair

M committee member

A committee attendee

Sharon Slattery
Company Secretary A

Read her biography on page 35

Read her biography on page 35

Read her biography on page 35

Jon Alexander

A

General Counsel

Stephen Ellis

Chief Operating Officer

Alasdair Gardner

Chief Executive Officer Islands

Jon has over 25 years’ experience working in
private practice law firms and in-house and
he is qualified to practise law in England and
Wales, New South Wales, Australia and
Scotland. As General Counsel for LBCM, Jon
provides advice to the Executive Committee,
Board and wider business on corporate level
and business specific issues. He commenced
his role with LBCM in 2020 having joined LBG in
2004, and he previously held various
leadership roles in the Group’s Retail and
Commercial Banking Legal teams. Before
joining the Group, he worked in private
practice law firms in Edinburgh and Sydney.

Stephen is the SMF 24, Chief Operations
function, role holder for LBCM. He is
responsible for supporting and delivering the
LBCM operating model. Stephen has over 20
years’ experience with Lloyds Banking Group
and spent time in leadership roles in London,
Tokyo, Hong Kong and New York, where he
gained a US Broker Dealer Principal license
while serving as Head of Treasury and
Trading North America. Stephen has sat on
the board of two Lloyds Bank subsidiary
companies and is a member of the
Technology and Operations Committee of
the Association for Financial Markets in
Europe

36 Lloyds Bank Corporate Markets plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022

Alasdair has considerable client and
leadership experience across a range of
client and financing segments. He has held a
variety of roles within LBG, including MD for
Lloyds Mid Markets business in Scotland and
North of England as well as SME for Scotland.
He also had sector responsibility for UK
Housebuilders and Social Housing. Prior to this
he headed the Energy Division of HBOS, which
succeeded his role in leading transactional
teams delivering funding solutions. Alasdair
also held roles as Head of Industrials and
Commercial Banking Scotland and Head of
Large Corporates North America where he
was responsible for heading up the client
coverage teams across all sectors in the USA.
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Executive Committee

Governance

Delivering our strategy and day-to-day management

&
“

Rob Hale

Managing Director - Head of M
Financial Markets

[
&
Nick Hughes
Head of Capital Markets and M
LBCMW

Samir Lalvani

Chief Executive and Country Head, M
North America

Rob started his career as a Rates Trader at
RBS in the late 1990s and has worked at a
number of Investment Banks before joining
Lloyds in 2007 to build out the Rates Trading
business and establish Lloyds as a GEMM (Gilt
Edged Market Maker). He went on to lead the
FX and Commodities business from 2015
before becoming Head of Traded Products
for LBCM in 2018. In addition, Rob was the
Accountable Executive for Ring-Fencing
Delivery for CBM, responsible for the design
and delivery of LBCM Markets in the
Commercial Bank. Since 2021, Rob has been
Head of Financial Markets, responsible for all
Financial Markets activity across London and
New York. Additionally, he is also jointly
accountable for the governance and delivery
of transformation and technology
programmes for Markets which are key to our
strategic ambitions and future growth.

Rupert Mingay
Chief Risk Officer M

Nick leads LBCM's Capital Markets business
globally, which provides Corporate and
Institutional customers with comprehensive
financing solutions across its debt capital
markets, securitised products group, bond
syndicate and credit sales and trading
activities. The business also provides the
associated risk management services, as
well as capital and risk analytics and insights.
Capital Markets operates across both
primary and secondary markets activities.
Nick started his career at LBG in 1999 and in
the Markets business since 2006 in various
client facing and structuring roles catering
for Corporate and Institutional clients,
notably in structured finance with a key focus
on infrastructure. In August 2021 Nick was
appointed as head of the broader Capital
Markets business within LBCM, prior to which
he we responsible for the Derivative Sales
and Structuring business within LBCM.

Samir joined LBG in 2009 from Citigroup,
where he worked for 10 years in Structured
Corporate Finance and the Markets
businesses. Prior to Citigroup, Samir spent
eight years in the branded consumer industry,
working at Proctor & Gamble and Nabisco.
Samir served as President of Lloyds Securities
Inc. and Head of Capital Markets, playing an
instrumental role in establishing Lioyds
Securities Inc. and developing the Bank’s
product capabilities in the US. In 2015, Samir
joined ANZ Banking Group, where he was Head
of Coverage, International Banking and
Deputy CEO, North America. He returned to
LBG in 2016, where he resumed his role as
President of Lloyds Securities Inc.

Fiona Murtagh
People Director M

Linda Rae Winter
Chief Internal Auditor A

Rupert joined LBCM as a non-executive
director and Chair of the Board Risk
Committee in 2022 before becoming CRO.
He was previously Treasurer of NatWest
Markets during the implementation of
ring-fencing, Brexit and the onset of
COVID-19. Prior to that, he was Group
Treasurer of Standard Chartered and held
other senior roles in London and
Singapore in Group corporate
development, consumer and private
banking and treasury. Rupert has more
than 30 years’ experience in banking,
starting his career in investment banking
at Goldman Sachs and JPMorgan. He also
co-founded an advisory firm in Hungary in
partnership with the European Bank for
Reconstruction and Development.

Fiona has spent her career in Human
Resources, having held a number of
generalist HR roles as well as leading large
scale People change projects, including
the successful integration of Lloyds TSB
and Halifax Bank of Scotland. She spent a
number of years specialising in the areas
of Talent and Development, supporting
the Commercial Banking business.
Following this, she was appointed as Head
of Human Resources for North America
(NA) and Global Large Corporates,
covering North America, Asia and Europe.
Fiona’s role subsequently expanded and is
currently the People Director for LBCM.
Fiona played netball for England for over
13 years, obtained over 100 caps, and was
awarded an MBE for services to netballl.

Linda is the Chief Internal Auditor for LBCM,
a position she has held since April 2018. In
this role she is responsible for challenging
LBCM Executive Management to improve
the effectiveness of LBCM governance, risk
management and internal controls,
consistent with the LBCM Risk Management
Framework. Prior to joining LBG, Linda held
a senior position in Barclays heading up a
first line controls function across Barclays
Corporate product and sales divisions and
gained considerable global experience. In
her career with American Express Bank
and JP Morgan, she worked in Audit
building her extensive knowledge of
numerous banking products and helping
to improve risk management and control
disciplines.
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Approach to corporate goverrn
Fundamental to LBCM's strategy ¢

A Corporate Governance Framework is in place for the Bank, which sets the
approach and applicable standards in respect of the Bank’s corporate governance
arrangements whilst addressing the matters set out in the Principles. This includes
the matters reserved to the Board, and the matters the Board has chosen to
delegate to management, including decision making on operational matters such as
those relating to credit, liquidity and the day-to-day management of risk, and the
governance requirements of the operation of the Bank as an entity outside of LBG’s

Ring-Fenced Bank.

In accordance with the Large and Medium-sized
Companies and Group (Accounts and Reports)
Regulations 2008 (as amended by the Companies
(Miscellaneous Reporting) Regulations 2018) (the
Regulqtions), for the year ended 31 December 2022, LBCM
plc (the Bank) and its subsidiaries (LBCM Group) has in its
corporate governance arrangements applied the Wates
Corporate Governance Principles for Large Private
Companies (the Principles) which are available at
www.frc.org.uk. The following section explains the Bank’s
approach to corporate governance, and its application
of the Principles.

Governance arrangements, including the Corporate
Governance Framework, are reviewed to ensure they
remain fit for purpose. The Corporate Governance
Framework of the Bank further addresses the
requirements of the Principles as follows.

Principle one - purpose and leadership

The Board is collectively responsible for the long-term
success of the Bank. It achieves this by agreeing the Bank’s
strategy, within the wider strategy of LBG, and overseeing
delivery against it. The Bank’s strategy is discussed further
in the Strategic report. The Board also assumes
responsibilities for setting the culture, values, and wider
standards of the Bank, within the equivalent standards set
by LBG.
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Consideration of the needs of all stakeholders is
fundamental to the way the Bank operates, as is
maintaining the highest standards of business conduct,
which along with ensuring delivery for customers is a vital
part of the corporate culture. The Bank’s approach is
further influenced by the need to build a culture in which
everyone feels included, empowered, and inspired to do
the right thing for customers. To this end, the Board plays a
lead role in establishing, promoting, and monitoring the
Bank’s corporate culture and values, with the Corporate
Governance Framework ensuring such matters receive
the level of prominence in Board and Executive decision
making which they require. The Board receives regular
updates on LBCM's culture including progress on the
cultural transformation journey, which is closely aligned to
those of LBG, which are discussed in more detail in the LBG
Annual Report and Accounts for 2022.

Principle two — board composition

The Board is chaired by a hon-executive member of the
LBG Board and contains a balance of independent non-
executive directors (iNED), LBG executives gserving as non-
executives) and executive directors. This composition
supports its legal and regulatory requirements for
independent decision making within the overall
framework of LBG policies and controls. Further details of
the directors can be found within this annual report.

There were a number of changes to the Board during the
year and since the year end, all of which were overseen by
the Nomination and Governance Committee.
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In September 2022, Eduardo Stock da Cunha announced
his intention to retire from LBG and as Chief Executive
Officer of LBCM at the end of January 2023 after three years
in role to move to the next chapter of his life. Eduardo had
spent more than six years with LBG and was instrumental in
the development and implementation of the LBG's ring-
fencing operating model. He was at the heart of creating
the new strategy for LBCM's future growth, where he
brought a wealth of commercial experience and
leadership.

Carla Antunes da Silva, one of the Bank’s two internal NEDs,
serving on the Board for the last five years, and LBG’s Group
Strategy, Corporate Development and Investor Relations
Director has been appointed as CEO with effect from 1
February 2023, having received regulatory approval. As
LBCM embarks on a hew growth period for the business,
Carla Antunes da Silva’s strategic thinking and customer-
orientation will provide the leadership to deliver on medium
and long-term plans to extend digitisation, especially in our
Retail and Financial Markets businesses, as well as growing
Capital Markets and banking presence both in the UK and
internationally in Europe and the US.

Visit of the LEG ChairRebirrBudenberg to LBCM, Feb

John Cummins, having served on the Board since the
Bank’s set-up, as an iNED and Chair of the Board Risk
Committee, resigned from the Board on 28 February 2022
to pursue other opportunities.

On 30 September 2022, Rupert Mingay, having joined the
Board on 11 April 2022 to succeed John Cummins stepped
down from the Board to take up the position of LBCM’s Chief
Risk Officer. After an extensive selection process of high
calibre candidates, Mark Basten was appointed as an iNED
and Chair of Board Risk Committee with effect from 9
February 2023. He brings strong experience in both credit
and operational risk areas which are important to LBCM.

Following the resignation of Emma Lawrence from the
Board to pursue a career outside of LBG, and the
resignation of Carla Antunes da Silva to take up the role of
CEO, the Board completed its refresh of internal NEDs with
the appointments of Rose St Louis from 27 September 2022,
and Cecile Hillary from 9 November 2022. As Protection
Director for LBG and LBG's Group Treasurer respectively,
Rose and Cecile complement the existing strengths of the
Board.

The Nomination and Governance Committee continues to
keep under review, on an ongoing basis, the structure, size
and composition of the Board and its committees, making
recommendations to the LBCM Board as appropriate.

Consideration is given to the need to ensure the
appropriate mix of knowledge, skills and experience, and
diversity. The Board has adopted the LBG Board Diversity
Policy and LBG Board Diversity Objectives as applicable to
the Bank and reflecting the relative size of the Board. The
Board’'s commitment is to maintain at least three women
board members so long as the board size is nine directors.

The Board structure is 9 directors: a Chair independent on
appointment, 4 INEDs, 2 internal NEDs and 2 executive
directors. The Board has made good progress on diversity
at board level in its broadest sense — gender, race,
nationality, and age. It is a multinational Board (German,
French, Portuguese and British), with age diversity from 40
years upwards, Black, Asian, and Minority Ethnic
representation of 11 per cent and 55 per cent of the Board
currently comprising women directors.

Both the CEO and CFO are women and the Board therefore
continues to exceed the FTSE Women Leaders Review
recommendation of 40% board and leadership positions
held by women and at least one woman appointed as
chair, senior independent director, CEO or CFO by the end
of 2025.

The Board meets the objective of the Parker Review of
having at least one Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic Board
member and continues its ambition to achieve the LBG
Diversity objectives relative to its size and reflecting the
Bank is a subsidiary and not a listed entity.

Reflecting the size and complexity of the business, the
Board has established o committee structure comprising
a Board Risk Committee, Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination and Governance Committee
(‘Committees). The Committees make recommendations
to the Board on matters delegated to them, in particular in
relation to internal control, risk, financial reporting and
remuneration matters. Eoch Committee has written terms
of reference setting out its delegated responsibilities and
comprises INEDs with appropriate skills and experiences
and chaired by an experienced Chair. The Committee
Chairs report to the Board at each Board meeting.

The Board undertakes an annual review of its
effectiveness, which provides an opportunity to consider
ways of identifying greater efficiencies, ways to maximise
strengths and highlights areas of further development.
During the year under review, Nomination and Governance
Committee provided oversight of an internal review,
conducted by the Company Secretary, of the effectiveness
of the Board, its committees and the individual directors,
having commissioned an external review during 2020 with
the next external review due in 2023. The internal review
process included a confidential open-ended questionnaire
to the Board and its committees, a confidential Chair and
peer review and a short pulse survey seeking views of the
senior executive population providing a holistic review of
performance. The internal evaluation included an appraisal
of each director and Lord Lupton, as Chair. The Senior
Independent Director led the appraisal of the Bank’s Chair.
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The internal evaluation concluded that the Board oversees
the management of LBCM effectively and has the
appropriate skills and expertise to protect the interests of all
stakeholders. Its directors benefit from diverse but
complementary skills and experience in financial markets
and institutions, technology, and consumer-facing
businesses in the UK and overseas, and all make valuable
contributions to the Board. While the evaluation did not
highlight any material weaknesses or concerns, it identified
some areas of focus in the future, including: (1) finding more
time on the Board agenda for fewer but deeper
conversations on substantive topics; (2) deepening Bank
and LBG collaboration and relationships; (3) encouraging an
environment of even greater openness and transparency,
moving toward more holistic reporting of issues; (i) building
the Board as a team welcoming its new members; and (5)
learning on topics important to the Board in such areas as
transformation, data ethics, climate change risk and
sustainability. The Board was pleased with the progress
against the actions from the 2021 review.

The internal Board evaluation also considered the activities
of the Audit, the Board Risk, the Nomination and Governance,
and Remuneration Committees. It concluded that the
Committees were operating effectively, with the right
balance of membership, experience, and skills.

The Board has established and maintains corporate
governance practices that provide clear lines of
accountability and responsibility to support effective
decision-making through the Corporate Governance
Framework. This also helps clarify the relationship between
the Bank and its parent company in order to deliver long-
term sustainable success. Policies are also in place in
relation to potential conflicts of interest which may arise. All
Directors have access to the services of the Company
Secretary, and independent professional advice is available
to the directors at the expense of LBG, where they judge it
necessary to discharge their duties as directors.

The Board is supported by its committees which make
recommendations on matters delegated to them under the
Corporate Governance Framework. The management of all
committees is in keeping with the basis on which meetings
of the Board are managed, with open debate, and adequate
time for members to consider proposals which are put
forward. The Chair of the Board and each of its committees
assumes responsibility with support from the Company
Secretary for the provision to each meeting of accurate and
timely information.

The Board oversees the development and implementation of
the Bank’s strategy, within the context of the wider strategy
of LBG. Consideration is given to strategic opportunities, and
the Board'’s annual cycle of meetings includes sessions
dedicated to debating strategic priorities and ‘Extended
business updates' into business areas and key risk areas, as
well as one meeting focused on strategy.

The Board is also responsible for the long-term sustainable
success of the Bank, ensuring it generates value for its
shareholder and delivers a positive contribution to society.
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The Board agrees the Bank’s culture, purpose, values, and
strategy within those set by LBG, and sets expectations for
risk management, financial performance, and reporting. The
specific aims and objectives of the Board are formalised
within the Bank's Corporate Governance Framework, which
also sets out the key decisions and matters reserved for the
Board's approval.

Strong risk management is central to the Bank’s strategy
along with a robust risk control framework which acts as the
foundation for sustainable business growth. The Board
agrees the Bank's risk appetite, within the overarching risk
appetite of LBG, and monitors the effectiveness of risk
management with the support of the Board Risk Committee.
Board level engagement, coupled with the direct
involvement of senior management ensures that escalated
risk issues are promptly addressed, and remediation plans
are initiated where required.

The Bank's risk appetite, principles, policies, procedures,
controls, and reporting are managed in conjunction with
those of LBG and are regularly reviewed to ensure they
remain fully in line with regulations, law, corporate
governance, and industry best practice. The Bank’s principal
risks are discussed further in the Strategic Report.

The Remuneration Committee of the Board is responsible for
reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration policy for the Bank. This includes
reviewing performance and approving remuneration
arrangements ranging from the remuneration of directors
and members of the Executive to that of all other colleagues
where the regulators require the Bank to implement a
specific approach to their remuneration, such as Senior
Managers and other material risk takers. The activities of the
Remuneration Committee extend to matters of
remuneration relevant to subsidiaries of LBCM, taking into
account the principles, policies and governance
requirements of LBG and the recommendations of LBG'’s
Group Remuneration Committee.

The Bank, as part of LBG, operates under LBG's wider
Responsible Business approach, which acknowledges that
the Bank has a responsibility to help address the economic,
social, and environmental challenges which the UK faces,
and as part of this understand the needs of the Bank’s
external stakeholders, including in the development and
implementation of strategy. Central to this is LBG's purpose
Helping Britain Prosper.

The workforce, as a key stakeholder, includes the Bank’s
permanent employees, contingent workers and third-party
suppliers delivering services to customers and supporting
key business operations. This also includes LBG colleagues
providing services to the Bank under the Shared Service
Model. The Board's approach to workforce engagement
includes an annual programme of engagement activity and
oversight of policies on remuneration structures and
practices that take account of the broader operating
context, including the pay and conditions of the wider
workforce and the Bank’s response to matters such as any

gender pay gap.
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Other disclosures relating to directors

Appointment and retirement of directors

The appointment of directors is governed by the Bank’s articles of association and the Companies Act 2006. The Bank’s
articles of association may only be amended by a special resolution of the shareholder in a general meeting.

Directors

The names of the current Directors are shown in this report on pages 34 and 35. Changes to the composition of the
Board since 1January 2022 up to the date of this report are shown in the table below.

Joined the Board Left the Board
Carla Antunes da Silva (non-executive director) 8 September 2022
Carla Antunes da Silva (executive director) 1February 2023
Mark C Basten 9 February 2023
John J Cummins 28 February 2022
Cecile Hillary 9 November 2022
Emma L Lawrence 7 July 2022
Rupert H Mingay 11 April 2022 30 September 2022
Rose M St Louis 27 September 2022
Eduardo J Stock da Cunha 31January 2023

Directors’ indemnities and directors’ and officers’ liability insurance

The directors of the Bank, including the former directors who resigned during the year, have entered into individual
deeds of indemnity with LBG which constitute ‘qualifying third party indemnity provisions’ for the purposes of the
Companies Act 2006. The deeds were in force during the whole of the financial year or from the date of appointment
in respect of the directors who joined the Board during 2022 or since the year end. Directors no longer in office but who
served on the Board at any time in the financial year and since year end had the benefit of this deed of indemnity
during that period of service. The indemnity remains in force for the duration of a director’s period of office. The deeds
indemnify the directors to the maximum extent permitted by law. In addition, LBG has in place appropriate Directors
and Officers Liability Insurance cover which was in place throughout the financial year. Deeds for existing directors are
available for inspection at the Bank’s registered office.

LBG has also granted deeds of indemnity by deed poll and by way of entering into individual deeds, which constitute
‘qualifying third party indemnity provisions’ to the Directors of LBG’s subsidiary companies, including former Directors
who retired during the year, and to colleagues subject to the provisions of the Senior Managers and Certification
Regime. Such deeds were in force during the financial year ended 31 December 2022 and remain in force as at the
date of this report. Qualifying pension scheme indemnities were granted to the Trustees of the Lloyds Banking Group’s
Pension Scheme relevant to the Bank, which were in force during the financial year ended 31 December 2022 and
remain in force as at the date of this report.

Change of control

The Bank is not party to any significant agreements which take effect, alter, or terminate upon a change of control of
the Bank following a takeover bid. There are no agreements between the Bank and its directors or employees
providing compensation for loss of office or employment that occurs because of a takeover bid.

Directors’ interests

The directors do not have any direct interest in the shares of the Bank. Lord Lupton is also a director of LBG. Lord
Lupton’s interest in shares of LBG is shown in the report and accounts of that company.
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Conflicts of interest

The Board has a comprehensive procedure for reviewing and, as permitted by the Companies Act 2006 and the Bank’s
articles of association, approving actual and potential conflicts of interest. Directors have a continuing duty to notify
the Chair and the Company Secretary as soon as they become aware of actual or potential conflict situations.
Changes to the commitments of all directors are reported to the Board and a register of potential conflicts and time
commitments is regularly reviewed and authorised by the Board to ensure the authorisation status remains
appropriate

Lord Lupton is a senior adviser to Greenhill Europe, an investment bank focused on providing financial advice on
significant mergers, acquisitions, restructurings, financings, and capital raising to corporations, partnerships,
institutions, and governments. The Board has recognised that potential conflicts may arise as a result of this position.
The Board has authorised the potential conflicts and requires Lord Lupton to recuse himself from discussions, should
the need arise.

Andrew Mcintyre is NED, Senior Independent Director and Chair of the Audit and Risk Committee of C. Hoare & Co., a UK
regulated private bank, and NED and Chair of Audit Committees of Target Group Limited and its subsidiaries, a wholly
owned subsidiary group of Tech Mahindra Limited based in India which provides transformational outsourcing,
business process management and managed services to the financial services sector. The Board has recognised that
potential conflicts may arise in relation to these positions. The Board has authorised the potential conflicts and
requires Andrew Mclintyre to recuse himself from discussions, should the need arise.

The following NEDs hold/held executive roles within LBG and whilst these are permitted interests under the Bank’s
articles of association, for the sake of good order the Board authorised the potential conflicts that may arise as a
result of those roles and required the individuals listed below to recuse themselves from discussions, should the need
arise. These individuals did not act as representative of LBCM's sole shareholder, LBG, in their capacity as NEDs of the
Bank’s Board:

Name LBG Role
EmmalLlLawrence Customer Management Director, Retail Bank until July 2022
. Group Strategy, Corporate Development and Investor Relations Director for LBG, and
Carla Antunes da Silva attendee of GEC until September 2022
Cecile Hillary Group Treasurer

Protection Director, Insurance Pensions and Investments and Chief Executive of
Rose M St Louis Cavendish Online Limited

eagues on the Londdn tradingfloor
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LBCM, as part of LBG, contributes towards the targets, goals and ambition of our parent company Lloyds Banking
Group plc. More details can be found in the 2022 “Building a sustainable future” LBG Environmental Sustainability
Report 2022, which is available to download from the LBG website.

Tackling the
Building a climate crisis
sustal goes hand in
hand with
delivering LBG's
purpose of

This report covers LBG's progress against the Task Force on Climate related Financial Disclosures (TCFD)
recommendations and recommended disclosures, along with our approach to addressing the broader
environmental and associated governance areas. Alongside TCFD disclosures, the report includes the LBG climate
transition plan, which is informed by emerging guidance.

Streamlined energy and carbon reporting

The Bank has taken advantage of the exemption from Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR) reporting
requirements in its own Directors’' Report as it is covered by the LBG SECR report in the Lloyds Banking Group plc 2022
Annual Report and Accounts available at www.lloydsbankinggroup.com/investors/financial-downloads.html
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Results

The consolidated income statement on page 57 in this
annual report and accounts shows a statutory profit
before tax for the year ended 31 December 2022 of £477
million (year ended 31 December 2021: £289 million).

Dividends

During the year the Bank paid an interim dividend of
£220 million, which was paid in April 2022 (2021: £200
million). The directors have not recommended a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2022. Refer
note 30 on page 98.

Share capital

Information about share capital is shown in note 26 on
page 96. This information is incorporated into this report
by reference.

The Bank issued 250 million ordinary shares of £1 each
on 20 December 2022. The Bank did not repurchase any
of its own shares during the year and there are no
restrictions on the transfer of shares in the Bank other
than set out in the articles of association and certain
restrictions which may from time to time be imposed by
law and regulations.

Post balance sheet events

Details of events after the balance sheet date are set
out in note 39 on page 138.

44 Lloyds Bank Corporate Markets plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022

Governance

g

E
{ ‘ &
Governance and Directors’ ﬁJport c‘ontinu‘éd
| |

|

LBCM Head Office,
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London

Going concern

The going concern of the Bank and LBCM Group is
dependent on successfully funding their respective
balance sheets and maintaining adequate levels of
capital. In order to satisfy themselves that the Bank and
LBCM Group have adequate resources to continue to
operate for the foreseeable future, the directors have
reviewed the Bank and LBCM Group’s operating plan
and its funding and capital positions, including a
consideration of the implications of climate change
and the market events of March 2023 to date. The
directors have also taken into account the impact of
further stress scenarios. Accordingly, the directors
conclude that the Bank and LBCM Group have adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for a
period of at least 12 months from the date of the
approval of the financial statements and therefore it is
appropriate to continue to adopt the going concern
basis in preparing the accounts.

Change of control

The Bank is not party to any significant agreements
which take effect, alter, or terminate upon a change of
control of the Bank following a takeover bid. There are
no agreements between the Bank and its directors or
employees providing compensation for loss of office or
employment that occurs because of a takeover bid.
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LBCM provides a wide range of banking and financiall
services through branches and offices in the UK, the
USA, Germany, and the Crown Dependencies. The
strategic closure of the Singapore office has been
completed, with the banking license surrendered.
Following a strategic review undertaken in June 2022 to
reduce the branches footprint on the Islands, the
decision was taken to reduce the number of branches

from 9 to 6, in the first review of its kind in over a decade.

Information regarding future developments and
financial risk management objectives and policies of
LBCM in relation to the use of financial instruments that
would otherwise be required to be disclosed in the
Directors’ report, and which is incorporated into this
report by reference, can be found in the Strategic
report.

Certain information is incorporated into this report by
reference. Information about internal control and risk
management systems relating to the financial
reporting process can be found on page 24.

Information about share capital is shown in the notes to
these accounts. The Bank is a wholly owned subsidiary
of LBG, which holds all of the Bank’s issued ordinary
share capital.

The directors manage the business of the Bank under
the powers set out in the Companies Act 2006 and the
Bank’s articles of association. These powers include
those in relation to the issue or buy back of the Bank’s
shares.

During the ordinary course of business, LBCM develops
new products and services within its business units.

LBCM employed an average of 850 colleagues (note 7)
during 2022 (2021: 954) reflecting colleagues based in

the USA, Germany, Crown Dependencies and Singapore,

where the office closed for business in first half of 2022
and the majority of colleagues had left by end of the
third quarter of 2022.

In addition, the Crown Dependencies continued to
refine its operating model, both of these have impacted
the average number of colleagues year on year.
Information concerning the employees of LBG is
available in the LBG's 2022 Annual Report and Accounts.

As part of LBG, the Bank is committed to creating an
inclusive and diverse organisation where colleagues
with disabilities or long-term health conditions feel
valued and supported to reach their full potential. The
Bank supports colleagues who have disclosed a
disability in a range of ways. The Bank ensures full and
fair consideration to applications from people with
disabilities, and offers bespoke training, career
development, promotions and adjustments for
colleagues and applicants with disabilities, including
those who became disabled while employed. This has
been recognised through LBG holding the Business
Disability Forum Gold Standard accreditation and
retaining Disability Confident Leader status from the
Department for Work and Pensions, which recognise the
inclusive culture of LBG, and the support provided to our
colleagues identified as having a disability including
those who became disabled while employed.

LBCM has a shared service contract with Llioyds Bank plc
for the provision of services (note 7). Details of related
party transactions are set out in note 32.

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual
Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations. Company law requires
the directors to prepare financial statements for each
financial year. Under that law, the directors are required
to prepare the Bank’s and the Group’s financial
statements in accordance with international
accounting standards in conformity with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Under company law, the directors must not approve the
financial statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Bank and the Group and of the profit or loss of the Bank
and the Group for that period. In preparing these
financial statements, the directors are required to
properly select and apply accounting policies; present
information, including accounting policies, in a manner
that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and
understandable information; provide additional
disclosures when compliance with the specific
requirements in international accounting standards in
conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act
2006 are insufficient to enable users to understand the
impact of particular transactions, other events and
conditions on the entity’s financial position and financial
performance; and make an assessment of the Bank's
ability to continue as a going concern.
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities
continued

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate
accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the Bank’s transactions and disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the Bank and the Group and enable them to ensure
that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Bank and the Group and
hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

A copy of the financial statements is placed on the
website ww.lloydsbankinggroup.com/investors/
financial-downloads.html. The directors are responsible
for the maintenance and integrity of all information
relating to the Bank on that website. Legislation in the UK
governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from legislation in other
jurisdictions.

Each of the current directors who are in office as at the
date of this report, and whose hames and functions are
listed Directors’ Report on pages 34 and 35, confirm
that, to the best of his or her knowledge:

«  The Bank’s and the Group’s financial
statements, which have been prepared in
accordance with international accounting
standards in conformity with the requirements
of the Companies Act 2006 give a true and fair
view of the assets, liabilities, financial position
and profit or loss of the Bank and the Group

«  The Strategic report and the Directors’ report,
includes a fair review of the development and
performance of the business and the position of
the Bank and the Group together with a
description of the principal risks and
uncertainties they face

+ The Annual Report and Accounts, taken as a
whole, are fair, balanced, and understandable
and provides the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Bank’s and the
Group’s position, performance, business model
and strategy. The directors have also
separately reviewed and approved the
strategic report.
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Independent auditors and audit
information

Each person who is a director at the date of approval of
this report confirms that, so far as the director is aware,
there is no relevant audit information which the Bank’s
auditor is unaware and each director has taken all the
steps that he or she ought to have taken as a director to
make himself or herself aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the Bank’s auditor is
aware of that information. This confirmation is given
and should be interpreted in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

Deloitte LLP were re-appointed as external auditors at
the annual general meeting on 25 May 2022 and will
hold office until conclusion of the next general meeting
at which accounts are laid before the Bank.

Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved by the Board
and signed on its behalf by

%@mwﬁw

Julienne C Daglish
Director
21 March 2023

Lloyds Bank Corporate Markets plc
Registered in England and Wales
Company number 10399850

BCM Trading
Flgor, London
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF LLOYDS BANK
CORPORATE MARKETS PLC

Report on the audit of the financial statements
1. Opinion
In our opinion:

the financial statements of Lioyds Bank Corporate Markets plc (the ‘Bank’) and its subsidiaries (the ‘Group’ or ‘LBCM’) give a true and fair
view of the state of the Group’s and of the Bank’s affairs as at 31 December 2022 and of the Group's profit for the year then ended;

the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom adopted international accountin
standards and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (1ASB):;

the Bank financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom adopted international accounting
standards and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and

the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.
We have audited the financial statements which comprise the:

« the consolidated income statement;

« the consolidated and Bank statements of comprehensive income;

« the consolidated and Bank balance sheets;

« the consolidated and Bank statements of changes in equity;

» the consolidated and Bank cash flow statements; and

» Notes 1to 41to the financial statements, which include the accounting principles and policies.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Group’s financial statements is applicable law, United
Kingdom adopted international accounting standards, and as regards the Bank’s financial statements, as applied in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

2. Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the Group and the Bank in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council’s (the ‘FRC’s’) Ethical Standard as applied to listed public interest entities,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. The non-audit services provided to the
Group and Bank for the year are disclosed in note 8 to the financial statements.

We confirm that we have not provided any non-audit services prohibited by the FRC'’s Ethical Standard to the Group or the Bank.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
3. Audit scope, approach, and execution

Key audit matters The key audit matters that we identified in the current year were:
i Expected credit losses (Group and Bank):;
ii. Valuation of complex and illiquid financial instruments held at fair value (Group and Bank); and
iii. IT systems that impact financial reporting (Group and Bank).
Our assessment of the level of risk for each of these areas have remained consistent with the prior year.

Materiality Overall materiality used for the Group consolidated financial statements was £33.9 million, which was
determined on the basis of net assets.
Overall materiality used for the Bank financial statements was £33.9 million, which was determined on the
basis of net assets and capped at Group materiality.

Scoping Our audit scope covers 97% of the Group’s revenue, 96% of the Group’s profit before tax, 99% of the Group’s
total assets, and 99% of the Group’s total liabilities.

Our audit approach

Our audit approach is risk focused and structured to reflect the Group’s organisation. It can be summarised into the following key
activities that we used to obtain sufficient audit evidence required to form our opinion on the Group and Bank financial statements:

. Audit planning and risk assessment

We considered the macroeconomic factors affecting the Group during the year and discussed the impact of the war in Ukraine, the
current economic environment and changes to UK fiscal policy on the Group’s key judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty.
The partners for the Group’s two components, and those leading areas requiring significant audit judgement including the expected
credit loss and the valuation of complex and illiquid financial instruments were required to consider these factors in their assessment of
risk and to design testing procedures to adequately address the assessed risk. These partners also met regularly with management to
understand business strategy, the Group’s accounting judgements and estimations and other matters which arose during the year that
could have impacted the Group’s financial reporting. Our risk assessments were further informed by detailed analytics as well as other
quantitative and qualitative audit procedures, including consideration of matters such as the impact of cost of living pressures in the UK
and climate change on the account balances, disclosures and Group practices;

. Audit work executed at component level

We have identified components based on the Group’s operating segments. The following components were subject to audit procedures;
the overseas component teams based in US, and Crown Dependencies. On the basis of materiality, we have removed the Singapore
component from our scope. The Group audit team was in active dialogue throughout the audit with the component audit teams
responsible for the audit work under the direction and supervision of the Group audit team. This included determining whether the work
was planned and performed in accordance with the overall Group audit strategy and the requirements of our Group audit instructions to
the components. We were able to satisfy ourselves that our oversight and supervision was appropriate through in-person meetings,
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video-conferencing, direct onsite reviews of work completed, and we have continued to attend the quarterly meetings that our
components have held with the local management.

. Audit procedures undertaken at both Group level and Bank level

In addition to the above, we also performed audit work on the Group and Bank financial statements, including the consolidation of the
Group’s results, and the preparation of the financial statements, as well as the Group’s entity level and oversight controls relevant to
financial reporting. All components greater than 10% of the total Group’s assets or 10% of the Group’s total liabilities were included in our
audit scope. The components not covered by our audit scope are subject to analytical procedures to confirm our conclusion that there
were no significant risks of material misstatement in the aggregated financial information.

. Internal controls testing approach

Our internal controls testing approach was informed by our scoping and risk assessment activities. We have assessed the Group’s end-
to-end financial reporting processes supporting all in-scope financial statement balances and identified relevant controls to test. This
included the testing of general IT controls, process level controls and entity level controls at the Group level.

. The impact of climate change on our audit

In planning our audit, we have considered the impact of climate change on the Group’s operations and subsequent impact on its
financial statements. The Group sets out its assessment of the potential impact on page 18 of the Principal risks & uncertainties section of
the Annual Report.

In conjunction with our climate risk specialists, we have held discussions with the Group to understand their:

« process for identifying affected operations, including the governance and controls over this process, and the subsequent effect on the
financial reporting for the Group; and

« long-term strategy to respond to climate change risks as they evolve including the effect on the Group’s forecasts.
Our audit work has involved:
« evaluating climate risk as a factor in risk assessment for potentially affected balances;

« challenging the completeness of the physical and transition risks identified and considered in the Group’s climate risk assessment and
the conclusion that there is no material impact of climate change risk on the current year financial reporting;

reviewing the Group’s qualitative portfolio analysis, and challenging the key assumptions used by the Group with reference to our own
understanding of the portfolios and publicly available documentation; and

assessing disclosures in the annual report, and challenging the consistency between the financial statements and the remainder of the
annual report.

We have not been engaged to provide assurance over the accuracy of climate change disclosures set out at page 18 of the Principal
risks & uncertainties section of the Annual Report. As part of our audit procedures we are required to read and consider these disclosures
to consider whether they are materially inconsistent with the financial statements or knowledge obtained in the audit and we did not
identify any material inconsistencies as a result of these procedures.

4. Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Our evaluation of the directors’ assessment of the Group’s and the Bank’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting included:

« using our knowledge of the Group and Bank, the financial services industry, the financial services regulatory environment and the
general economic environment to identify inherent risks in the business model and how such risks might affect the financial resources
or ability to continue operations over the going concern period;

+ making enquiries of Group management about the assumptions, including growth rate and expected credit loss projections, used in
their going concern assumption, and assessing the reasonableness of those assumptions and historical forecasting accuracy;

- supported by Prudential Risk specialists, reading the most recent ICAAP and ILAAP submissions, considered management’s capital and
liquidity projections, evaluating the results of management’s stress testing, and challenging key assumptions and methods used in the
stress testing;

« considering the Group’s and the Bank’s operational resilience;

« reading industry data, Bank of England reports and other external information to determine if it provided corroborative or contradictory
evidence in relation to the Group’s and the Bank’s assumptions;

reviewing correspondence and meeting with prudential and conduct regulators to assess whether there are any matters that may
impact the going concern assessment; and

« evaluating the Group’s disclosures on going concern against the requirements of I1AS 1.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually
or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group's and Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve
months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of this
report.

5. Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud)
that we identified. These matters included those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in
the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Expected credit losses (Group and Bank)

Key audit matter description

How the scope of our audit responded to the key audit matter

Refer to notes 2, 3, 9,14 and 36 in the financial statements

The Group has recognised £62 million of expected credit
losses (‘ECL) as at 31 December 2022. The determination of ECL
consists of a number of assumptions that require a high
degree of complex and subjective auditor judgement,
specialised skills and knowledge, complex impairment
modelling and a high degree of estimation uncertainty.
Specifically, the impact of the war in Ukraine, residual
economic impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, as well as the
economic impact of the rising cost of living on the ECL have
been particularly judgemental given the inherent uncertainty
in the current economic environment.

The key areas we identified as having the most significant
level of management judgement were in respect of:

« Multiple Economic Scenarios (MES); and

« In-model adjustments (IMAs’) and post-model adjustments
(‘PMA’) and loans individually assessed

Multiple economic scenarios

The measurement of expected credit losses is required to
reflect an unbiased probability-weighted range of possible
future outcomes.

The Group’s economics team develops the future economic
scenarios. Firstly, a base case forecast is produced based on
a set of conditioning assumptions, which are designed to
reflect the Group’s best view of future events. A full distribution
of economic scenarios around this base case is produced
using a Monte Carlo simulation and scenarios within that
distribution are ranked using estimated relationships with
industry wide historical loss datai.

Three scenarios are derived from the distribution as averages
of constituent modelled scenarios around the 15th, 75th and
95th percentiles of the distribution which corresponds to an
upside, a downside and a severe downside, respectively. The
severe downside is then adjusted to incorporate non-
modelled paths for inflation and interest rate assumptions.
The upside, the base case and the downside scenarios are
weighted at 30% and the severe downside at 10%.

These four scenarios are then used as key assumptions in the
determination of the ECL allowance.

The development of these multiple economic scenarios is
inherently uncertain, highly complex, and requires significant
judgement.

The principal consideration for our determination that the
multiple economic scenarios is a critical audit matter was the
high degree of management judgement which required
specialised auditor knowledge and a high degree of audit
effort in areas such as evaluating the forward-looking
information used by management, and the weighting
applied.

We performed the following procedures:

Tested the controls over the generation of the multiple economic
scenarios including those over the Group’s governance processes to
determine the base case, different scenarios and the weightings
applied to each scenario;

Working with our internal economic specialists:

i. challenged and evaluated economic forecasts in the base scenario
such as the UK and US unemployment rate, commercial real estate
price growth, inflation and forecasted interest rates, and Gross
Domestic Product in the UK and in the US through comparison to
independent economic outlooks, external analysts and market data;

i. challenged the appropriateness of management’s change in
methodology in determining the severe downside scenario;

ii. challenged and evaluated the appropriateness of the methodology
applied to generate alternative macroeconomic scenarios, and
including associated weightings and assumptions within; and

iv.independently replicated the multiple economic scenario model
and compared the outputs of our independent model to the Group’s
output to re-test scenario generation.

» Tested the completeness and accuracy of the data used by the

model;

Performed a stand back assessment of the appropriateness of the
weightings applied to each of the scenarios based on publicly
available data; and

Evaluated the adequacy of disclosures in respect of significant
judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty including
macroeconomic scenarios.
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Key audit matter description How the scope of our audit responded to the key audit matter

In-model adjustments (IMAs’) and post-model adjustments ~ We tested the controls across the process to determine the ECL

(‘PMA’) and loans individually assessed provisions including:
The Group’s ECL is calculated on a collective basis for + Model governance and arithmetical accuracy of provision
performing loans, being those in stage 1and 2, and on an calculations;

individual basis for larger impaired loan in stage 3. - data accuracy and completeness; and

The collective provision is determined using impairment
models. The models use a number of judgements to calculate ) )
a probability weighted ECL estimate by applying appropriate ~ We performed the following audit procedures over:

probability of default, estimated exposure at default and « Expected credit losses determined through impairment models:
taking account of collateral held or other loss mitigants,

+ recognition and calculation of post-model adjustments.

discounted using the effective interest rate. The key driver of i. Independently assessed the credit rating and tested whether the
the probability of default, and, therefore, the staging of the exposure was in the correct stage classification against IFRS 9
Group’s exposures, is the credit risk rating. The determination criteria;

of these credit risk ratings is performed on a counterparty ii. Assessed the appropriateness of the model methodologies,

basis for larger exposures by a credit officer and involves approach and assumptions, including those used in developing the
!Usgem'int and consideration of multiple sources of internal model adjustments and post model adjustments;
information.

o ) iii. Tested the completeness and accuracy of key data used; and
Complex models and significant judgements are used to

develop the probability of default, loss given default and

exposure at default as well as applying the staging criteria + Expected credit losses assessed individually:
under IFRS 9 Financial Instruments.

iv. Performed a recalculation of the IFRS 9 collective provision.

i. Assessed the exposure to determine if they met the definition of
For individual provision assessments of larger exposure in credit impaired with a stage 3 classification;
stage 3, the judgements in determining provisions and where

we focused our work on are the: ii. Performed independent assessments to determine the

appropriateness of recovery scenarios and associated cash flows,
completeness and appropriateness of the potential including considerations of climate risks on recoveries;
workout scenarios identified;

iii. Evaluated valuations, including management’s use of valuation
probability assigned to each identified potential workout specialists; and
scenario; and

iv. Independently assessed and challenged the completeness of

+ valuation assumptions used in determining the cash flows workout and restructuring scenarios identified and weightings
within workout scenarios. applied.

Complex and subjective auditor judgement including We have assessed the adequacy of whether the disclosures

specialised knowledge is required in evaluating the appropriately address the uncertainty which exists in determining the

methodology, models and inputs that are inherently ECL.

uncertain.

Key observations communicated to the Audit Committee

We are satisfied that the ECL provisions are reasonable and recognised in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9. The calculations
are based on appropriate methodologies using reasonable modelled assumptions, including IMAs and PMAs addressing model
shortcomings. Overall, we are comfortable with the Group’s conclusions in respect of ECL.
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Valuation of certain complex and illiquid financial instruments held at fair value (Group and the Bank)

Key audit matter description

How the scope of our audit responded to the key audit matter

Refer to notes 2, 3,11,12, 34 and 36 in the financial statements

Financial instruments are classified as Level 1,2 or 3in
accordance with IFRS 13 Fair value measurement.

The fair value of complex and illiquid financial instruments,
involves significant judgement. The extent of judgment
applied by the Group in valuing the Group’s financial
investments varies with the nature of assets held, the markets
in which they are traded, and the valuation methodology
applied.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has £1.2 billion of complex
and illiquid financial instruments, consisting of long-dated
derivative contracts, illiquid debt securities and loans to
customers. The valuation of these Level 3 financial
instruments uses complex valuation models as these are
without readily determinable market values and were valued
using significant unobservable inputs that involved
considerable judgment by management.

We consider these judgements to be at risk of management
bias, giving rise to a potential risk of fraud.

We tested the controls over the valuation of financial instruments,
including controls over independent price verification, model validation,
and model review controls.

We utilised our valuation specialists in our audit of the valuation of the
Level 3 portfolios and we performed the following procedures:

Challenged the appropriateness of derivative contracts and illiquid
debt and loans valuation methodologies;

Calculated an independent valuation for a sample of modelled Level 3
financial instruments and compared results of our independent
estimates with the valuation recognised by the Group;

« Evaluated the consistency and appropriateness of inputs and
assumptions over time, challenging both significant movements and
non-movements where we expected change;

» Performed a stand back assessment of the appropriateness of the
assumptions, and input data used in the valuation of Level 3 financial
instruments; and

» Assessed the adequacy of financial instruments disclosures included
in Note 34.

Key observation communicated to the Audit Committee

We are satisfied that the valuation of complex and illiquid financial instruments is reasonable, and in accordance with IFRS 13 Fair value

measurement.

IT systems that impact financial reporting (Group and Bank)

Key audit matter description

How the scope of our audit responded to the key audit matter

The Group’s IT environment is inherently complex due to the
number of systems it operates and its reliance on automated
and IT dependent manual controls. Together, these support a
broad range of commercial, treasury, and trading products
as well as the processing of the Group’s significant volume of
transactions, which impact all account balances.

As such, IT systems within the Group form a critical
component of the Group’s financial reporting activities. Due
to the significant reliance on IT systems, effective General IT
Controls (‘GITCS’) are critical to allow reliance to be placed on
the completeness and accuracy of financial data and the
integrity of automated system functionality, such as system
calculations.

We identified the IT systems that impact financial reporting as
a key audit matter because of the:

« Pervasive reliance on complex technology that is integral to
the operation of key business processes and financial
reporting;

Reliance on technology which continues to develop in line
with the business strategy, such as the increase in the use
of automation across the Group and increasing reliance on
third parties; and

Importance of the IT controls in maintaining an effective
control environment. A key interdependency exists between
the ability to rely on IT controls and the ability to rely on
financial data, system configured automated controls and
system reports.

IT controls, in the context of our audit scope, primarily relate to
privileged access at the infrastructure level, user access
security at the application level and change control.

Our IT audit scope tested the Group’s IT controls over information
systems deemed relevant to the audit based on the financial data,
system configured automated controls and/or key financial reports that
reside within it.

We used IT specialists to support our evaluation of the risks associated
with IT in the following areas:

» General IT Controls, including user access and change management
controls;

« Key financial reports and system configured automated controls; and
» Cyber security risk assessment.

Where deficiencies in the IT control environment were identified, our risk
assessment procedures included an assessment of those deficiencies
to determine the impact on our audit plan. Where relevant, the audit
plan was adjusted to mitigate the unaddressed IT risk.

Where we were able to identify and test appropriate mitigating controls
over affected financial statement line items, our testing approach
remained unchanged.

In a limited number of areas, we adopted a non-controls reliance
approach and we therefore performed additional substantive
procedures.

Key observations communicated to the Audit Committee

IT control deficiencies were identified in respect of privileged user access to IT infrastructure and in application user access
management. The existence of these deficiencies in the year resulted in an increased risk in relation to data, reports and automated

system functionality from the affected systems.

However, overall, in combination with business mitigating controls, we are satisfied that the Group’s overall IT control environment

appropriately supports the financial reporting process.
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6. Our application of materiality

6.1 Materiality

We define materiality as the magnitude of misstatement in the financial statements that makes it probable that the economic decisions
of a reasonably knowledgeable person would be changed or influenced. We use materiality both in planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

Group financial statements

Bank financial statements

Materiality £33.9 million (2021: £34.8 million) £33.9 million (2021: £34.8million), capped to the Group’s
materiality.

Basis for In determining our benchmark for materiality, we have The Bank’s materiality represents 1% of net assets, and is

determining considered the metrics used by investors and other users capped at Group materiality.

materiality of the financial statements. We have determined net

assets to be the most relevant to users of the financial
statements.
The Group’s materiality represents 1% of net assets.

Rationale for the
benchmark
applied

Given the importance of these measures to investors and
users of the financial statements, we have used net
assets as the primary benchmark for our determination
of materiality.

Net assets is a key metric within the financial statements
on which the users, being the owner of the Group, lenders,
and regulatory body tends to focus.

Component materiality allocated across all two
components range between £10.2 million and £13.6 million.

Given the importance of these measures to investors and
users of the financial statements, we have used net
assets as the primary benchmark for our determination
of materiality.

Net assets is a key metric within the financial statements
on which the users, being the owner of the Bank, lenders,
and regulatory body tends to focus.

Component materiality allocated across all two
components range between £10.2 million and £13.6 million.

6.2 Performance materiality

We set performance materiality at a level lower than materiality to reduce the probability that, in aggregate, uncorrected and
undetected misstatements exceed the materiality for the financial statements as a whole.

Group financial statements

Bank financial statements

Performance 60% of Group materiality at £20.4 million (2021: 60% at 60% of Bank materiality at £20.4 million (2021: 60% at £20.9
materiality £20.9 million) million)
Basis and In determining performance materiality, we considered the following factors:

rationale for
determining
performance
materiality

a. the quality of the control environment and whether we were able to rely on controls;

b. degree of centralisation and commonality of controls and processes;

c. the uncertain economic environment;

d. the nature, volume and size of uncorrected misstatements arising in the previous audit; and

e. the nature, volume and size of uncorrected misstatements that remain uncorrected in the current period.

In the prior year, performance materiality was set at 60% reflecting amongst other factors that it was Deloitte LLP's
first year auditing the Group and the Bank’s financial statements.

6.3 Error reporting threshold

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to the Committee all audit differences in excess of £1.7 million (2021: £1.7 million),
as well as any differences below this threshold, which in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds. We also report to the Audit
Committee on disclosure matters that we identified when assessing the overall presentation of the financial statements.

7. OtherInformation

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, other than the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Directors are responsible for the other information
contained within the Annual Report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other

We have nothing to
reportin this
regard.

information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.
Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in course of the audit or

otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to

determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact.
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8 Responsibilities of Directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s and the Bank’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or the Bank or to cease operations, or have no redlistic alternative but to do so.

9. Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at: www.frc.org.uk/
auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

10. Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with our
responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our
procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below.

Identifying and assessing potential risks related to irregularities

In identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement in respect of irregularities, including fraud and non-compliance with laws
and regulations, we considered the following:

« the nature of the industry and sector, control environment and business performance including the design of the Group’s remuneration
policies, key drivers for directors’ remuneration, bonus levels and performance targets;

results of our enquiries of management, in-house legal counsel, internal audit and the Audit Committee, including obtaining and
reviewing supporting documentation, concerning the Group’s policies and procedures relating to:

e identifying, evaluating and complying with laws and regulations and whether they were aware of any instances of non-compliance;
> detecting and responding to the risks of fraud and whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud;
o the internal controls established to mitigate risks related to fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations;

discussion among the engagement team including significant component audit teams and involving relevant internal specialists,
including tax, valuations, economic, credit risk, IT and industry specialists regarding how and where fraud might occur in the financial
statements and any potential indicators of fraud; and

understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that the Group operates in, focusing on those laws and regulations that had a
direct effect on the financial statements, such as provisions of the UK Companies Act, pensions legislation and tax legislation or that
had a fundamental effect on the operations of the Group, including regulation and supervisory requirements of the Prudential
Regulation Authority, Financial Reporting Council and Financial Conduct Authority.

Audlit response to risks identified

As a result of performing the above, we identified the Group’s determination of ‘expected credit loss’ and ‘valuation of complex and illiquid
financial instruments held at fair value’ as key audit matter related to the potential risk of fraud. The key audit matters section of our
report explains the matter in more detail and also describes the specific procedures in response to the key audit matter. In common with
all audits under 1SAs (UK), we are also required to perform specific procedures to respond to the risk of management override.

In addition to the above, our procedures to respond to risks identified included the following:

« reviewing the financial statement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance with provisions of
relevant laws and regulations described as having a direct effect on the financial statements;

enquiring of management, the Audit Committee and in-house legal counsel concerning actual and potential litigation and claims;

 performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may indicate risks of material misstatement
due to fraud;

» reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance, reviewing internal audit reports and correspondence with regulators
including Prudential Regulation Authority and Financial Conduct Authority; and

« in addressing the risk of fraud through management override of controls, testing the appropriateness of journal entries and other
adjustments; assessing whether the judgements made in making accounting estimates are indicative of a potential bias; and
evaluating the business rationale of any significant transactions that are unusual or outside the hormal course of business.

We also communicated relevant identified laws and regulations and potential fraud risks to all engagement team members including
specialists, and component audit teams, and remained alert to any indications of fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations
throughout the audit.
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Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
1. Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

- The information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

 The strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and of the Bank and their environment obtained in the course of the audit,
we have not identified any material misstatements in the strategic report or the directors’ report.

12. Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Adequacy of explanations received and accounting records We have nothing to
report in respect of

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion: these matters.

+ We have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

» Adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Bank, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us; or

« The Bank’s financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

Directors’ remuneration We have nothing to
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also required to report if in our opinion certain disclosures of directors’ :re‘gor:::t;is"eﬂ of

remuneration have not been made.

13. Other matters which we are required to address
Auditor tenure

Following the recommendation of the Audit Committee, we were appointed by shareholders at its annual general meeting on 25 May
2022 to audit the financial statements of Lloyds Bank Corporate Markets plc for the year ended 31 December 2022 and subsequent
financial periods. The period of total uninterrupted engagement of the firm is accordingly two years.

Consistency of the audit report with the additional report to the Audit Committee
Our audit opinion is consistent with the additional report to the Audit Committee we are required to provide in accordance with ISAs (UK).
14. Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Bank’'s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Bank’'s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than
the Bank and the Bank’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

As required by the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA’) Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rule (DTR’) 4114R, these financial
statements form part of the European Single Electronic Format (‘ESEF’) prepared Annual Financial Report filed on the National Storage
Mechanism of the UK FCA in accordance with the ESEF Regulatory Technical Standard ((ESEF RTS’). This auditor’s report provides no
assurance over whether the annual financial report has been prepared using the single electronic format specified in the ESEF RTS.

ﬁ/t-«'}’? 6}’@?“ r?/f&z.z. ~

Alan Chaudhuri (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behallf of Deloitte LLP

Statutory Auditor

London, United Kingdom

21 March 2023
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Consolidated income statement

for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Note £ million £ million
Interest income 1,087 356
Interest expense (812) (189)
Netinterestincome 4 275 187
Fee and commission income 228 248
Fee and commission expense (36) (27)
Net fee and commission income 5 192 221
Net trading income 6 495 244
Other operating income (expense) 5 ()
Otherincome 692 454
Totalincome 967 641
Operating expenses 7 (a44) (414)
Impairment (chqrge) credit 9 (46) 62
Profit before tax 477 289
Tax expense 10 (97) (51)
Profit for the year 380 238
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 337 205
Profit attributable to other equity holders 43 33
Profit for the year 380 238

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statements of comprehensive income

for the year ended 31 December 2022

The Group The Bank
2022 2021 2022 2021

Note £ million £ million £ million £ million
Profit for the year 380 238 348 247
Other comprehensive income
Items that may subsequently be reclassified to profit or loss:
Movements in revaluation reserve in respect of debt securities held at fair
value through other comprehensive income, net of tax 27 - 8 - 8
Movements in cash flow hedging reserve, net of tax 27 (an) (153) (an) (153)
Movements in foreign currency translation reserve, net of tax 27 10 - 3 -
Total other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax (ae1) (145) (468) (145)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year (81) 93 (120) 102
Total comprehensive (loss)/income attributable to ordinary shareholders (124) 60 (163) 69
Total comprehensive income attributable to other equity holders 43 33 43 33
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year (s1) 93 (120) 102

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Balance sheets

at 31 December 2022

The Group The Bank
2022 2021 2022 2021
Note £ million £ million £ million £ million
Assets
Cash and balances at central banks 19,382 22140 19,382 22140
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1 14,780 22,409 14,642 22268
Derivative financial instruments 12 24,621 17,990 24,647 18,042
Loans and advances to banks 217 2354 2,063 2,333
Loans and advances to customers 19,127 17,432 18,864 17,176
Reverse repurchase agreements 5,606 5,044 5,606 5,044
Debt securities 305 229 305 229
Due from fellow Lloyds Banking Group undertakings 269 557 593 862
Financial assets at amortised cost 13 27,424 25,616 27,431 25,644
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 16 6 100 6 100
Property, plant and equipment 17 56 67 45 53
Current tax recoverable 5 16 2 14
Deferred tax assets 23 213 37 226 40
Investment in subsidiary undertakings 18 - - 180 203
Other assets 19 172 324 164 317
Total assets 86,659 88,699 86,725 88,821
Liabilities
Deposits from banks 2,456 3,821 2,456 3,821
Customer deposits 29,152 26,967 29,152 26,553
Repurchase agreements 7 1,019 7 1,019
Due to fellow Lloyds Banking Group undertakings 1,481 3,442 1,526 3920
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 20 12,578 16,582 12,578 16,582
Derivative financial instruments 12 20,070 15,572 20,070 15,571
Debt securities in issue 21 16,131 16,644 16,131 16,644
Other liabilities 22 574 461 558 444
Current tax liabilities 28 5 29 8
Other provisions 24 26 13 25 10
Subordinated liabilities 25 761 684 761 684
Total liabilities 83,264 85,210 83,293 85,256
Equity
Share capital 26 370 120 370 120
Other reserves 27 (525) (64) (530) (62)
Retained profits‘ 28 2,768 2,651 2,810 2,725
ordinary shareholder’s equity 2,613 2,707 2,650 2,783
Other equity instruments 29 782 782 782 782
Total equity 3,395 3,489 3,432 3,565
Total equity and liabilities 86,659 88,699 86,725 88,821

1 The Bank recorded a profit after tax for the year of £348 million (2021: £247 million).
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

The Directors approved the financial statements on 21 March 2023.

W Daglich

Carla Antunes da Silva Julienne C Daglish

Director Director
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Statements of changes in equity

for the year ended 31 December 2022

Attributable to ordinary shareholders

Other
Share Other Retained equity

capital reserves profits Total  instruments Total
The Group £ million £ million £ million £ million £ million £ million
At1January 2021 120 81 2,646 2,847 782 3,629
Comprehensive income
Profit for the year - - 205 205 33 238
Other comprehensive income
Movements in revaluation reserve in respect of debt
securities held at fair value through other comprehensive
income, net of tax - 8 - 8 - 8
Movements in cash flow hedging reserve, net of tax - (153) - (153) - (153)
Total other comprehensive (loss)/income - (145) - (145) - (145)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income - (145) 205 60 33 93
Transactions with owners
Dividends (note 30) - - (200) (200) - (200)
Distributions on other equity instruments - - - - (33) (33)
Total transactions with owners - - (200) (200) (33) (233)
At 31 December 2021 120 (64) 2,651 2,707 782 3,489
Comprehensive (loss)/income
Profit for the year - - 337 337 43 380
Other comprehensive loss
Movements in revaluation reserve in respect of debt
securities held at fair value through other comprehensive
income, net of tax - - - - - -
Movements in cash flow hedging reserve, net of tax - (an) - (an) - (an)
Movements in foreign currency translation reserve, net of
tax - 10 - 10 - 10
Total other comprehensive (loss)/income - (a61) - (a61) - (a61)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income' - (ae1) 337 (129) 43 (s1)
Transactions with owners
Dividends (note 30) - - (220) (220) - (220)
Distributions on other equity instruments - - - - (43) (43)
Issue of ordinary shares 250 - - 250 - 250
Total transactions with owners 250 - (220) 30 (a3) (13)
At 31December 2022 370 (525) 2,768 2,613 782 3,395

1 Total comprehensive loss attributable to owners of the parent was £81 million (2021 income of £93 million).

Further details of movements in LBCM's share capital and reserves are provided in notes 26, 27, 28 and 29.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statements of changes in equity continued

Attributable to ordinary shareholders

Other
Share Other Retained equity

capital reserves profits Total  instruments Total
The Bank £ million £ million £ million £ million £ million £ million
At1January 2021 120 83 2,7 2914 782 3,696
Comprehensive income
Profit for the year - - 214 214 33 247
Other comprehensive income
Movements in revaluation reserve in respect of debt
securities held at fair value through other comprehensive
income, net of tax - 8 - 8 - 8
Movements in cash flow hedging reserve, net of tax - (153) - (153) - (153)
Movements in foreign currency translation reserve, net of
tax - - - - - -
Total other comprehensive (loss)/income - (145) - (145) - (145)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income - (145) 214 69 33 102
Transactions with owners
Dividends (note 30) - - (200) (200) - (200)
Distributions on other equity instruments - - - - (33) (33)
Total transactions with owners - - (200) (200) (33) (233)
At 31 December 2021 120 (62) 2725 2,783 782 3,565
Comprehensive (loss)/income
Profit for the year - - 305 305 43 348
Other comprehensive loss
Movements in revaluation reserve in respect of debt
securities held at fair value through other comprehensive
income, net of tax - - - - - -
Movements in cash flow hedging reserve, net of tax - (an) - (an) - (an)
Movements in foreign currency translation reserve, net of
tax - 3 - 3 - 3
Total other comprehensive (loss)/income - (a68) - (468) - (468)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income’ - (468) 305 (163) 43 (120)
Transactions with owners
Dividends (note 30) - - (220) (220) - (220)
Distributions on other equity instruments - - - - (43) (43)
Issue of ordinary shares 250 - - 250 250
Total transactions with owners 250 - (220) 30 (43) (13)
At 31December 2022 370 (530) 2,810 2,650 782 3,432

1 Total comprehensive loss attributable to owners of the parent was £120 million (2021: income of £102 miIIion).

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Cash flow statements

for the year ended 31 December 2022

The Group The Bank
2022 2021 2022 2021

Note £ million £ million £ million £ million
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 477 289 436 293
Adjustments for:
Change in operating assets 38 (A) (1,652) 351 (1,657) 203
Change in operating liabilities 38(B) (2,865) (3616) (2,881) (3495)
Non-cash and other items 38(c) (302) (125) (296) (152)
Tax paid (57) (a1 (58) (38)
Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities (4,399) (3142) (4,456) (3189)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of financial assets (26) (85) (27) (85)
Proceeds from sale and maturity of financial assets 131 138 132 138
Purchase of fixed assets @ @ (s) 0]
Dividends received from subsidiaries - - 22 44
Net cash (used in)/provided by investing activities 98 46 122 96
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid to ordinary shareholders 30 (220) (200) (220) (200)
Distributions on other equity instruments (a3) (33) (a3) (33)
Issue of ordinary shares 250 - 250 -
Interest paid on subordinated liabilities (25) (18) (25) (18)
Finance Leases (10) (3) (8) @
Net cash (used in)/provided by financing activities (48) (262) (46) (256)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 695 69 693 69
Change in cash and cash equivalents (3,654) (3.289) (3,687) (3280)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 23,103 26,392 23,083 26,363
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 38 (D) 19,449 23103 19,396 23,083

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

'Restated - See note 1
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Note 1: Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of Lloyds Bank Corporate Markets plc and its subsidiary undertakings have been prepared in
accordance with international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. The financial
statements have also been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

The financial information has been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation financial assets
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, trading securities and certain other financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss and all derivative contracts. The Directors consider that it is appropriate to continue to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the financial statements. In reaching this assessment, the Directors have considered the implications of
climate change upon LBCM's performance and projected funding and capital position. The Directors have also taken into account the
impact of further stress scenarios.

Details of those IFRS pronouncements which will be relevant to LBCM but which were not effective at 31 December 2022 and which have
not been applied in preparing these financial statements are given in note 40.

In April 2022, the IFRS Interpretations Committee was asked to consider whether an entity includes a demand deposit as a component of
cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows when the demand deposit is subject to contractual restrictions on use agreed
with a third party. It concluded that such amounts should be included within cash and cash equivalents. Accordingly, LBCM includes
mandatory reserve deposits with central banks that are held in demand accounts within cash and cash equivalents disclosed in the
cash flow statement. This change has increased LBCM's cash and cash equivalents at 1January 2021 by £22 million (to £26,392 million) and
increased the adjustment for the change in operating assets in 2021 by £23 million (to £351 million), and, as a result, LBCM's cash and cash
equivalents at 31 December 2021 increased by £45 million (to £23103 million). The impact of this change on LBCM’s cash and cash
equivalents at 31 December 2022 is £nil.

In 2021, LBCM adopted the Interest Rate Benchmark Reform Phase 2 amendments issued by the IASB. These amendments require that
changes to expected future cash flows that both arise as a direct result of IBOR Reform and are economically equivalent to the previous
cash flows are accounted for as a change to the effective interest rate with no adjustment to the asset’s or liability’s carrying value; no
immediate gain or loss is recognised. The requirements also provide relief from the requirements to discontinue hedge accounting as a
result of amending hedge documentation if the changes are required solely as a result of IBOR Reform.

Financial statement preparation includes the consideration of the impact of climate change on the Group’s financial statements. There
has been no material impact identified on the financial reporting judgements and estimates at the reporting date.

Note 2: Accounting policies
The accounting policies are set out below. These accounting policies have been applied consistently.

(A) consolidation

The assets, liabilities and results of Group undertakings are included in the financial statements on the basis of accounts made up to the
reporting date. Group undertakings include subsidiaries. Details of LBCM’s subsidiaries and related undertakings are given on page 140.

(1) subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it has power over the entity, is exposed to, or has
rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity, and has the ability to affect those returns through the exercise of its power.
This generally accompanies a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights although in certain circumstances a holding of less
than one half of the voting rights may still result in the ability of the Group to exercise control. The existence and effect of potential voting
rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group controls another entity. The Group
reassesses whether or not it controls an entity if facts and circumstances indicate that there have been chang